New Hartford Public Schools
Board of Education Regular Meeting Agenda

7:00 PM on Tuesday, June 4, 2024
Antolini School Library

New Hartford BOE meetings are accessible live via the following:

https://meet.google.com/pjo-wchk-iku
or by phone +1 956-520-3734 PIN: 355 348 803#

In case of remote only meetings and you need an electronic device to participate please contact the
Board of Education at 860-379-8546 with more than 24 hours notice to prepare and schedule a location.

A. Pledge of Allegiance
B. Order of Business

C. Communications to the Board of Education/Public Comment

D. Superintendent’s Report
Job Description - Data Systems Specialist
Educator Evaluation Plan

E. Board of Education Chair’s Report
Social Media Policy/Etiquette

F.  Routine Business
Approval of Minutes - May 14, 2024
Expenditure Report

G. New Business
1. Becky Tyrell - Meal Prices 2024-2025
2. Asbestos Abatement Design Plans

H. Old Business
1. Policy & Regulation 4111.3 Personnel - Increasing Educator Diversity (2nd Read)
2. Policy 4118.22/4218.22 Personnel - Code of Ethics (2nd Read)
3. Policy 5112 Students - Ages of Attendance/Admissions/Placement (2nd Read)
4. Policy & Regulation 5141.5 Students - Youth Suicide Prevention and Attempts (2nd Read)

I. Reports
J. Additional Public Comment - (For Agenda Items Only)
K. Executive Session
Superintendent Evaluation and Contract
New Hartford Board of Education Evaluation

L. Adjournment

Recorded Reg. & Special BOE meetings will be posted to:
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCX- ZlomWmjG81dc QM3rfg



https://meet.google.com/pjo-wchk-iku
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCX-_ZlomWmjG81dc_QM3rfg

NEW HARTFORD PUBLIC SCHOOLS
JOB DESCRIPTION — DATA SYSTEMS SPECIALIST

POSITION TITLE: Data Systems Specialist for New Hartford Public Schools
REPORTS TO: Superintendent (or designee)

JOB DESCRIPTION: Manages, inputs, and assembles student information through the use of data
systems and programs. Provides instruction and directs staff in the use of data applications such as
PowerSchool. Facilitates the connections between Student Information Systems and third-party vendors,
including the rostering processes. Provides data mining services and analysis as requested.

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

Assume the lead role as SIS Data Systems Specialist relative to managing district data warehouses
including the collection and maintenance of accurate educational data.

Applies effective database management practices and ensures system security, data integrity and
quality control procedures.

Support administration in the collection, reporting, and maintenance of all student educational data
and records inclusive of state and local assessment programs.

Manage and complete state reporting of school district data (PSIS, ED166, TCS, CRDC, etc.) in
accordance with internal and state deadlines. Keep data systems current for changing reporting
needs.

Data validation using reporting tools and best practices and put in action corrective measures to
ensure accurate and timely data entry.

Manage district level functions for and/or with schools on client-hosted PowerSchool in
collaboration with the IT department.

Act as a liaison with third party software, leveraging PowerSchool for sync and Single Sign On
(SSO) for staff and students. Act as Student Data Security Manager within New Hartford Public
Schools and the Connecticut State Department of Education. (LEA Security Manager, CT Privacy
Officer, PSIS Coordinator, LEA Security Manager)

Act as the liaison (LEA Security Manager) between the School District and the Connecticut State
Department of Education to manage users and their roles for Portal Applications.

Act as liaison (Directory Manager) between School District and the Connecticut State Department
of Education to manage the assignment of access rights, permissions and overall security of the
district’s content and data as deemed necessary by Administration.

Act as the liaison (CT Privacy Officer) between the School District and the Connecticut State
Department of Education to maintain compliance with the Connecticut Student Data Privacy Act
PA 16-189.

Act as liaison (PSIS Coordinator) between School District and the Connecticut State Department
of Education in regards to state reports requirements. Support the mandatory user requirements
for the reporting of local, State and Federal student data. Manage the generation and upload of
state reports.

Perform SIS roll ups, de-registrations, downloads to other information systems/data drops.
Support administration in the development and maintenance of form letters, progress reports,
attendance, transcripts and other standardized practices for the organization of education records.



e Integrate multiple data sources and student information from all systems to communicate relevant
information to inform and support administrators.

Develop and communicate processes for administrators, end users, students and families.

Build the annual master schedule utilizing PowerScheduler at the direction of administrators.
Manage, coordinate, and train on yearly processes as appropriate to appropriate staff (e.g. setup of
new school year, roll over, close out school year, master schedule, progress reports, transcripts,
etc.)

Create various reports as requested by administration and school district staff.

Maintain and enhance the school district website.

Other responsibilities as assigned by the Superintendent or designee.

Read, analyze, and interpret common scientific and technical journals, financial reports, and legal
documents.

e Ability to effectively present information to administrators, community groups and Board of
Education.

Personal Development

e Attend workshops, when appropriate, to expand knowledge, skills, and abilities.

e Contribute to creating a positive working environment.

® Assist others with their assignments, providing support and developing skills,
abilities, and knowledge as needed.

e Demonstrate a high degree of professional growth, flexibility, initiative, and
responsibility.

e Accept and adjust to change smoothly and positively.

Initiative
e Regularly contribute to maximizing the effectiveness and efficiency of district operations.
e Consistently evaluate current methods, programs, and procedures, and implement new or
modified procedures when necessary.
o Demonstrate a proactive approach to problem solving.
e Display a strong sense of task ownership.

Reliability
e Maintain responsible, and effective performance and attendance.

Other Related Responsibilities

e Travel throughout the district as required.
e Perform other duties as assigned by the Superintendent of Schools (or designee)..

QUALIFICATION REQUIREMENTS: Must be knowledgeable and have hands-on experience with
database operations and ideally PowerSchool (SQL reports, etc). Must have the ability to set and meet
deadlines, advanced computer skills and ability to work well with others. Willingness to learn and
remain informed about developments in technology and administrative/curriculum applications.

EDUCATION and/or EXPERIENCE: Experience in an educational setting, training and/or
professional development experience preferred. Ability to write and communicate steps/processes using
effective digital tools.




CERTIFICATION: Not required.

PHYSICAL DEMANDS: The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be
met by an employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable
accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.

While performing the duties of this position, the employee is regularly required to sit and talk or hear. The
employee frequently is required to walk. The employee is occasionally required to stand and reach with
hands and arms. Specific vision abilities required by the job include close vision, distance vision. Some
driving is necessary. Often and essential to this position, the individual must meet deadlines with severe
time constraints. The position requires the employee to interact with the public and other workers; work
irregular or extended hours; direct responsibility for the safety, well-being or work output of other people;
and meet multiple demands from several people. Consistent attendance is essential to this position.

WORK ENVIRONMENT: The work environment characteristics described here are representative of
those an employee encounters while performing the essential functions of this school-based job.
Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential
functions. The noise level in the work environment can be moderate. Work location is an office with
occasions that require time in classrooms. Position usually demands meeting deadlines with time
constraints. The employee continuously interacts with staff and occasionally meets multiple demands
from several people.

The information contained in this job description is for compliance with the American with Disabilities
Act (A.D.A.) and is not an exhaustive list of the duties performed for this position. Additional duties may
be assigned.

The New Hartford Board of Education does not discriminate in any employment practice, education program, or educational activity on the basis
of race, color, religious creed, sex, age, national origin, ancestry, marital status, sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, disability
(including, but not limited to, intellectual disability, past or present history of mental disorder, physical disability or learning disability), genetic
information, or any other basis prohibited by Connecticut state and/or federal nondiscrimination laws.

May 2024



9327.1
Bylaws of the Board
Board Member Use of Internet Social Networks

The Board of Education (Board) recognizes that reliance on social media as a means of
communication is rapidly becoming the norm for school districts. Many school board members
are active users of social media, including, but not limited to, such online platforms as Facebook
and Twitter, as well as other media such as blogs and personal websites. The Board understands
that social media can be a positive tool for fostering community engagement with the school
district. However, Board members need to operate with appropriate guidelines when they are
communicating online about school district business.

While social networking sites can be an effective and efficient means of communication, Board
members need to be aware of the obligations and requirements that arise when using this form of
communication. Board members' personal use of social networking sites may be limited or
prohibited because of the need to comply with Connecticut statutes pertaining to public records
and open meetings as described in the Freedom of Information Act.

Compliance with Public Records Law

Any recorded data or information relating to the conduct of public's business prepared, owned,
received, or retained by the Board or the school district, whether handwritten, typed, tape-
recorded, printed, photo-stated, photographed or recorded by any other method is by definition a
"public record" and access thereto during normal hours of business shall be granted to any
citizen. This includes communication that school board members and district employees send or
receive relating to the affairs of the school district and the official acts of school officials and
employees. Electronically stored information generally constitutes a "record" within the meaning
of the public records law provided such recorded information is created or kept in connection
with school business. The substance of the information, not the format, controls whether it is a
public record. As an elected official, a school board member's information contained on a social
networking site or a blog, that is created or kept by the Board member regarding the affairs of
the district is likely to be considered a public record.

Compliance with the Freedom of Information Act

Board members must be mindful of the Connecticut Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) when
using social networking sites. The FOIA defines a "meeting" as any hearing or other proceeding
of a public agency, any convening or assembly of a quorum of a multimember public agency,
and any communication by or to a quorum of a multimember public agency, whether in person
or by means of electronic equipment, to discuss or act upon a matter over which the public
agency has supervision, control, jurisdiction, or advisory power (C.G.S. 1-200(2)).

Board member use of a social networking site may be susceptible to violations of the FOIA due
to the ease with which Board members can discuss school business in a manner that may
determine the Board's course of action. An online discussion by Board members can result in
agreement, tacitly or explicitly to act in a certain manner in number sufficient to reach a quorum.



Board members will not have online conversations that violate or to seek to circumvent the
FOIA. Board members may not use online websites to communicate with one another about
official Board business.

Social Networking Websites

Board members need to periodically review the importance of maintaining proper decorum in
the online digital world as well as in person. This review is to give special emphasis to Board
member use of Facebook, Twitter and other social media.

Code of Ethics

Use of social media sites by Board members shall be consistent with the Board's Code of Ethics
(Bylaw #9271).

Board members will refrain from inappropriate conduct in making public statements on
Facebook and other social networking sites, and will refrain from any disparagement of fellow
Board members or others on a personal, social, racial, or religious basis. Board members shall
not send messages that contain material that may be defined by a reasonable person as profane or
obscene; messages that are racist, sexist or promote illicit, illegal or unethical activity.

Board members will recognize that authority rests with the Board of Education and will make no
personal promises on social media sites nor take any private action which may compromise the
Board.

Maintaining Confidentiality

Board members will exercise care not to divulge confidential information about students, school
employees, or Board business on social media sites. Board members who have access to student
information, like District employees, are prohibited from disclosing that information without the
consent of the adult student or parent/guardian of a minor. In general, all records related to the
individual student maintained by a school constitute confidential student records.

Board members are not to expect that their online conversations will remain private. Discussion
of investigations into school issues will not be conducted online. Extreme care must be taken not
to disclose confidential information related to students or employees while interacting online.

Social Media Guidelines for Board Members

The following guidelines are for Board members to consider when using social media in their
role as public officials. In using social media to communicate about school district activities, a
Board member shall:

1. Clarify that the communication is as an individual member of the Board and not in the role of
an official District spokesperson.

2. Avoid deliberating school district business with a quorum of the Board.

3. Direct complaints or concerns presented online from other individuals to the appropriate
administrator.

4. Avoid posting content that indicated the reaching of an opinion on pending matters.



5. Ask for community input through appropriate channels, but will not allow the social network
site to direct decisions as a Board member.

6. Post only content that the District has already released to the public.

7. Clarify, when attempting to restate what happened at a previous Board meeting, that the
posting on the social media site is not an official record of such meeting. Share information only

from the open portions of the meeting.

8. Conduct himself/herself online in a manner that reflects well on the District; avoid posting
information that has not been verified and made public by the District; and never post
anonymously about school business.

9. Report immediately harassing or defamatory communications to the Superintendent if they
involve school officials, staff, students or District business.

10. Retain electronic records, including the Board member's own posts and content others post
to the Board members account, when required to do so by the District's retention policy.

11. Report immediately to the District any potential security breaches if the Board member loses
control or possession of a District-issued or personal electronic device on which confidential

District records could be accessed.

12. Comply with the District's acceptable use policy when using District-issued devices or
technology resources, including District Internet access on a personal device.

Legal Reference: Connecticut General Statutes
The Freedom of Information Act.
1-200 Definitions.
10-209 Records not to be public.
1-210 Access to public records. Exempt records. |
Public Law 94-553, The Copyright Act of 1976, 17 U.S.C. 101 et. seq.
Federal Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act of 1974.

Dept. of Education. 34 CFR. Part 99 (May 9, 1980 45 FR 30802) regs.
implementing FERPA enacted as part of 438 of General Education Provisions
Act (20 U.S.C. 1232g) parent and student privacy and other rights with respect
to educational records, as amended 11/21/96.

Policy adopted: April 25, 2017
NEW HARTFORD PUBLIC SCHOOLS

New Hartford, Connecticut



9327.1 Appendix

Social Media Etiquette

As use of blogs, micro blogs, Twitter, Facebook, and cell phone message texting has become
more commonplace, it is important for Board members, as elected officials, to make sure there is
a clear definition between the school district's and board member's own accounts.

Board members need to keep both communication etiquette and legal restraints in mind when
writing in their personal accounts. Remember:

1. The printed word, even if it is written and distributed via the Internet, is 'discoverable,’
meaning it can be retrieved and used as evidence in lawsuits.

2. Don't assume that you can post any opinion you want citing 'freedom of speech.' More and
more headlines are reporting defamation suits filed as the result of those postings.

3. Lawsuits are also being filed against social media users who have not obtained copyright
permission prior to posting copyrighted materials (articles and photos). Make sure you have
written permission for reproducing information and that you follow a publication's reprint/use
guidelines, even if you are using only a small portion of a lengthy article about school
improvement or other education-related topics from a publication.

4. Follow district guidelines and state and national privacy laws concerning the release of
student information (including use of photos) if you post anything about school district events on
a social media outlet. Obtain written permission from parents or guardians prior to posting
photos or other identifying information on your personal accounts even if the school district has
permission forms on file. Parents may not feel that a Board member's personal account is a place
to display their children's information.

5. Don't solicit discussion among fellow Board members on any school district business using
social media. While discussion of certain topics may be permitted, err on the side of caution so
that you don't find yourself violating legal requirements for open meetings.

6. Even if you are posting to your personal websites, such as Facebook and Twitter accounts,
remember that nothing is really personal on the Internet. People have a way of accessing the
information, forwarding, copying and pasting and possibly distorting what you have written.
Even though you use a personal page 2 account, as long as you are on the school board you are a
'public face' of the district and your comments could be misconstrued as reflecting views of the
district.

a. Include a statement or disclaimer on your account that the opinions you post are yours as an
individual.

b. Avoid posting your opinions about school district business or Board actions.

c. At a Board meeting, discuss with the district's legal counsel the legalities regarding use of a
personal social media account while serving as an elected official.



7. If you have a reason to post information about the district, double check to make sure the
information is correct. It is easy to transpose numbers, get a date or time incorrect even on the
most well-intentioned post, blog entry, or tweet.

a. Once an error is discovered, make the correction and then note the date/time of the correction
at the top of the post or blog. If you've sent an incorrect Tweet, send a new one with 'Correction’
at the lead.

b. To avoid putting incorrect information on your personal blogs, use links to the school
district's home page or blog directing readers/followers to get information from the 'official’
source.

8. Commenting on school district business while using one's own computer can put you in a
precarious position if a public records request is made of all communications concerning a
particular topic. Your personal computer and hard drive, and other data memory equipment
could be subpoenaed as part of a lawsuit discovery process.

9. Remember that once a thought, idea, claim, or suggestion has been distributed via social
media, it takes on a life of its own. Think twice when writing anything. Ask yourself if you
would want your comments to appear on the front page of the morning paper or as a lead item on
the television news.

10. Don't continue school board discussions or debates using your social media as a vehicle for
voicing your dissent or approval of an issue. The Boardroom is the place for discussion and
decision, not the Internet.

11. If you want public comment on a particular issue with which the school board is dealing,
don't ask readers/followers to comment on your own message boards or comment sections.
Instead, tell readers/followers how to contact the district through e-mail or phone calls that will
allow comments to be forwarded to all board members. Be sure to include information on
deadlines for submitting comments.

12. Refrain from using your personal social media account to inflame or incite a public outcry
on a topic that is being discussed by the board.

13. Never post any information gleaned during an executive session, such as that related to
personnel, business negotiations, and employee contract negotiations.

14. If you post to other sites and social media outlets - not under your control - make sure those
site's topics and photos are considered to be politically correct as well as socially acceptable for
readers of all ages.

15. Refrain from using cell phones during a meeting. Should a personal emergency arise that a
Board member must attend to, that member should remove him or herself from the meeting to
handle the situation.



Page 1 of 3

New Hartford Public Schools
Board of Education Regular Meeting (In-Person)
Ann Antolini Elementary School - Library
May 14, 2024 @ 7:00PM

PRESENT: Superintendent Jeffrey Sousa; Chairman Timothy Klepps; Vice Chairman
Thomas Buzzi; Members: Meagan Albert; Timothy Russell; Deirdre Tindall; Frank Rodenberg; Kristin Young; Erik
Perotti and Recording Secretary Elizabeth Domas.

Also Present: Kelly Carroll; Amy Kennedy; Michael Lynch and Heather Mathes, Ron Black, and Jay Bailey.
ABSENT: Board Member/Secretary Penny Miller

Chairman Timothy Klepps called the meeting to order 7:00PM.

A. Pledge of Allegiance

B. Communications to the Board of Education/Public Comment:
Jay Bailey of 575 Main Street handed out a letter and asked Mr. Jeffrey Sousa to read his letter aloud.
Superintendent Jeffrey Sousa read the letter. A copy of this letter is attached to the minutes.

C. Superintendent’s Report:

Superintendent Sousa expressed his appreciation towards all staff in New Hartford Public Schools. Mr. Sousa
highlighted several students. Student representative Brooke gave an update on what’s going on in New Hartford
Public Schools. The Celebration of Learning is happening on June 6, 2024, from 5:00-7:00PM and the Step-Up
Ceremony will be happening on June 13, 2024. Mr. Sousa gives his thanks to the Board of Selectman, Board of
Finance and Board of Education who are in support of the Board of Education. Lastly, Linda Fitzgerald, who is the
data manager, is retiring after 26 years.

D. Board of Education Chair’s Report:
Chairman Timothy Klepps announced the budget was approved by referendum on May 7, 2024.

Social Media Policy/Etiquette

Chairman Timothy Klepps began by asking for Board Members input on whether this topic should be
discussed with partial or full attendance. Board Member Deirdre Tindall thought all members should be
present for the discussion. Frank Rodenberg mentioned a Supreme Court ruling on this topic. The purpose of
this on the agenda is to review the policy and Timothy Klepps expressed that this is a learning initiative. The
Board agreed to table this subject until the next meeting.

E. Routine Business:

Approval of Minutes: March 5, 2024 (Regular Meeting), March 13, 2024 (Special Meeting), March 27, 2024
(Special Meeting), April 2, 2024 (Special Meeting) and April 23, 2024 (Special Meeting).

MOTION by Timothy Russell to approve all meeting minutes from the March 5, 2024, March 13, 2024,
March 27, 2024, April 2, 2024, and April 23, 2024, as presented. Second by Frank Rodenberg.



Page 2 of 3

AMENDED-MOTION by Timothy Russell to approve all meeting minutes from the March 5, 2024, March 13,
2024, March 27, 2024, April 2, 2024, and April 23, 2024, as presented subject to a clerical change to the April
23, 2024, meeting minutes. Second by Frank Rodenberg.

UNANIMOUS
Motion Passes
7-0-1
Expenditure Report:
MOTION by Thomas Buzzi to approve the expenditure report as presented. Second by Kristin Young.
UNANIMOUS

Motion Passes
Old Business: None

New Business:
1. Presentation for Consideration of Chlorination Systems at Ann Antolini and Bakerville Consolidated -
Ron Black, President, Water System Solutions & Design, Inc.

Ron Black has suggested two proposals, one for each school. The recommendation is to prevent
contamination a new tank install. Mr. Black noted that over the years contamination levels have gone up
and there are more issues when things go wrong. He recommended installing a chlorination system at the
schools. Mr. Black wanted to bring to the Board of Education’s attention what could be coming down the
pipe to allow time to prepare for this. Frank Rodenberg questioned Mr. Black if more frequent testing can
be done, instead of installing the system and what’s the cost to keep these systems going. Mr. Black was
asked what the implementation timeframe is, Mr. Black noted a few weeks from approval by the State of
Connecticut. Mr. Black noted it has been at least two years since the last contamination. Mr. Black stated
he operates 15 different schools, and 11 of them have a chlorination system. Clearly noted this is not in the
budget for next year (2024/2025). This recommendation is a protection for when bacteria hits. Chairman
Timothy Klepps asked for a revised proposal from Water System Solutions & Design be brought to date and
have the facility sub-committee investigate this topic and do more research. Mr. Black stated it will be
required within the next three years for this to be mandated to be tested around $1,000 per well. If the
test comes up positive for any bacteria you must test again. You then have 5 years to get a system in place.
This is why Mr. Black has suggested getting this in budget to test for, the sooner you test, the sooner you
can remediate the problem. There is a link between the chemical PFAS and areas such as industrial
properties, sewage plants, trash plants, fire departments, are more susceptible to contamination because
the bacteria will get into the water supply.

2. Policy & Regulation 4111.3 Personnel - increasing Educator Diversity (First Read)

3. Policy 4118.22/4218.22 Personnel - Code of Ethics (First Read)

4. Policy 5112 Students - Ages of Attendance/Admissions/Placement (First Read) effective July 1, 2024
5. Policy & Regulation 5141.5 Students - Youth Suicide Prevention and Attempts (First Read)

Reports

Deirdre Tindall reported several items that were discussed at the EdAdvance Board meeting last week on
May 2, 2024. The biggest news is Jeffrey Kitching is retiring. The Board approved FY 2024/2025 COLA
increases. When going over the budget, originally there was a deficit although they are waiting on money
owed from the state. They will look at the budget again in October and this deficit should be smoothed
out. The meeting also approved the Slate of Officers for 2024/2025. When looking at the budget, Deirdre



Page 3 of 3
noted that all assets were assessed so EdAdvance knows the value of their properties in the event there is
a budget issue. There was a scholarship which 150 students applied for, EdAdvance gave out 4, very
exciting news that one scholarship went to a student Region 7.

.  Additional Public Comment — (For Agenda Items Only): None
J.  Executive Session
New Hartford Board of Education Superintendent Evaluation
MOTION by Frank Rodenberg to enter Executive Session at 8:02PM. Second by Timothy Russell.

AMENDED-MOTION by Frank Rodenberg to enter Executive Session at 8:02PM and to invite
Superintendent Jeffrey Sousa. Second by Timothy Russell.

UNANIMOUS
Motion Passes

Everyone in attendance left the meeting.
The Board of Education and Superintendent Sousa remained for Executive Session.

Motions following Executive Session were provided by Chairman Timothy Klepps to the Recording Secretary.
Executive Session ended at 9:14PM.
L. Adjournment:

MOTION by Thomas Buzzi to adjourn the meeting at 9:15PM. Second by Deirdre Tindall.

UNANIMOUS
Motion Passes

Respectfully submitted by,
Elizabeth Domas, Recording Secretary

Recorded Regular and Special Board of Education meetings will be posted to:
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCX- ZlomWmijG81ldc QM3rfg

Attachments:

Email from Jay Bailey
Letter from Jay Bailey
EdAdvance meeting minutes



3 -afied L€ 1'EC0C fpyiebpngmidguenoid:  podey NV 95:80: || ¥20¢/€e/S0  -pajuld
%oees- (6Y°LEC'ELS) 00'0% (6¥'2EE'ELS) 6v°LEE'62S Se'9v8'es 00°000'9}+$ 00°000'0+$ 00°000°'0% S3ALNLILSANS YHYd 'STIHYIVS 021°L00°%1 1002100t
%le'Zl  OE'6YE'Z8$ 60'v2E'65% 6EEL9' VIS 01'£50'VEES 1E°5¥8'2r$ 67'0€L'S.V$ 00°'0% 6% °0EL'SLV$ Svdvd 'S3IHYIVS 0211002110021 001
%66t 89'c16$ gL's89's$ 08'865'9% y¢'88¢2'6E$ ¥9'8¥2'€$ $0°/88'Sv$ 000% ¥0'£BB'SY$ Q3dS AHY1IHO3S 'SAIHVIVS 021'000°21 1 0021 00L
%00°0 00'0$ 96'9/2'6$ 96'9/2'6% ¥0'€2E' L1 1S 26'9/2'6$ 00°009'0¢}$ 00°0% 00'009'02+$ usprIS- 1019840 _mmm_mﬁwm 021°100°L L 10024 004
%¥L'b- (92:000'ct$) 65'9v6'1GLS £9'Lv6'801% 12°111'867% 98'260'L.$ 09'G2.'206$ 00'6/6'99% 09°052'0v8% Q3111430 'SAIHY VS DZ1'000°L L 10021001
%L6'E 9E'8YS'cLIS LE'SYG'LBYS /9°€60'V65% 0l'1e2'282'2S 20°/56'9e2$ 12°%2€'9/8'2$ (00°962'6%) £2'021'988'2$ 0001 - uoneonp3 Jeinbay :oung

%0000 00°00S$ 00°0$ 00'005$ 00'0% 00°0% 00°005% 00°0$ 00'005$ LNIWIND3 611°000'0E£'0001 00+
%zl'el  CG'E6ES 00'€50'e$ 25'9vy'es 8¥'€SS$ 00°0% 00°000'€$ 00°0$ 00'000'e$ $v2IQ0idad 001 °L00°2¥3°0001 00k
%vs'es  B6'LL0'LLS 00'0$ 86°L10'LL$ 20'886'1$ 00°0% 00°000'61$ 00'0% 00°000'61$ HLYW 111°002' 1790001001
%5885 ¥E G8B'GH 00'0% v2'688'S$ 9L vLL'YS 00°0% 00°000'0t$ (00°000'01%$) 00°000'02$ ONIavVaY 601°002"+¥9°0001 ‘001
%0LLL  L6°0G1'2$ 00°0$ /6'0G1'e$ £0'6v8$ 00°0% 00'000'c$ 00'0$ 00'000'E$ $310NLS I00S #11°001"1¥9'0001 00}
%L Ly 8L 0LL'%$ 00°0% cL0LL'YS 98'62¢'S$ 00'0% 00°000'0}+$ (00°000°0+$) 00°000'02$ S1HY IDVNONY 60L°£00°L¥9°0004 00}
%00°00L  00°005$ 00°0% 00'00S$ 00°0% 00°0% 00°00S$ 00'0$ 00'005$ HSINVdS 90L'E00°1¥9'0001'004
%9L0L  8L'SHY'LS 00'0% 8L'GIY'LS 29'v85$ £6'vS$ 00°000°'2$ 00°0% 00°000'c$ 30N3108 0L1°000°H¥9°0001 00k
%EL'L S¥'Le$ 00°0$ Sv'/e$ G5'2hr'es 22 vr$ 00'0vY'e$ 000% 00'0v¥'e$ LNY -S317ddNS TYHINIO 0Z1°€00'9L9°000+ 00}
%grve- (L2 '¥09$) 00'0% (+2'v09%) LLPYO'ES 9L'LLLS 00°'0vY'e$ 00°0% 00°0vY'e$ 1INV -§311ddNS WHINTD 611'£00°919°0001 001
%6L52 &G 652$ 00'0% 22'642$ 82'Gv.$ 00°0% 00'S00'L$ 00°0% 00'500°'L$ S3HN -831TddNS TYHINIO 021'200'919°0001 001
%0l'e-  (E8°2LES) 00°0% (e82LES) £9°2/E'1$ 000% 00500} $ 00°0% 00°G00'+$ S3HN -531NddNS TYHIAN3D 611'200'9+9°0004°004
%000  00'0$ 8.'¢8% 8/°€8% 229LL'L$ 00°0% 00'002'+$ 00°0$ 00002 I$ TYLNIWNHLSNI - JISNW Z11'200'919°0004 001
%96's-  (€6'29%) 000% (e6°29%) £6°LLLLS 9E'1e$ 00'550°L$ 00'0$ 00°SS0°'L$ MYE- S3ITddNS TYHLINIO 021°100'919°000 4004
%esLt- (16'7BLE) 00°0$ (16'v81%) 166621 00°0$ 00°550°+$ 00°0$ 00°650'1$ Mvd - $317ddNS TYHINID 611°1L00'919°0001 001
%0L0E  G9'29G$ 52'62r$ 06°186% 01'818% €6°CLI$ 00'008'L$ 00°0% 00'008'L$ NOILYONA3 TYIISAHd 8117100'94+9°0001"004
%EL'el  EE'8ZES 00'0$ ££'82€$ 29°1L1'es 00001$ 00'005'c$ 00°0% 00°005'c$ HIHOVYIL/WOOHSSY10 £11°100'9+9°0001'004
%08'k  00°LE2$ y2'v66% e LEL' LS 9/'89¢$ 00'0% 00'005°L$ 00'0% 00°005'L$ 9-3-0ISNIN 211°100'9L9°000L 00k
%00 68'%$ 00°0$ 68'7$ 11°669'v$ 60°580'E$ 00°00L'v$ 00'0% 00°00L'v$ S3ddNS 1HY 201°100'9+9°0001 00k
%L1z9  OFESrE'L$ 00°0% 0Lgve'L$ 06'259$ 00°0% 00°000°'¢$ 00°0% 00°000'¢$ $311ddNS AFINT VL ? G3LHID 1040009 +9°000+ 00}
%eL'l9  LSVET'LS 000% LG VET LS £¥°59/$ SE'0L$ 00°000'2$ 00'0% 00°000°¢$ 1daq IIv -13AVHL 001"000°165°0001 00}
%zgzl-  (00°089'S$) 00°0$ (00°089'5$) 00°089'05% 00°0$ 00°000'G+$ 00°0$ 00°000'5t$ uonin 1 1004og 1uBEN O3HO 021°€09'095°0001 00}
%l9's9  95°9}E'6% 00°0% 95°91€'6$ Yy'e88'v$ 11°6€9% 00002'v+$ 00'0% 00°002'v+$ BIIX3 -SIOIAHIS oums._omﬁw 001°000°'02€"000 - ‘00k
wvel 0L Lyv$ 0€°859'6$ 00°00}'9% 00°0$ 00'0% 00°001'9%$ 00°0% 00'001'9% SINIWSSISSY WNINDIBEND 00L'000°€LE'000 4 00}
%999  00°6..'l$ 00'0$ 006.L'L$ 00°056'v2$ 00'00}'GL$ 00'62.'9¢$ 00'%02$ 00°525'92$ SAN3ILS OSIN ‘S3IVTYS 001°000°91 1 ‘0001 004
%828z (6S7LLS'61) 00°0% (6S'H1S'6L$) 65°}15'88% v6'528'8% 00°000'69% 00°000'0+$ 00°000'65$ S3LNLILSENS HHOL 'SIIHVYIVS 00+'LO0%+ 10001 004
%iz'8e  18'EEL'C9$ L L'Gee's$ 26'890'L/% g2'9¢t'e6$ £1°252'8% P1L'G6L'¥9LS 00°0$ ¥1'561'v9L$ SSV10 HYIND3Y _mm_m_ﬁ«m LLLLO0'ZHE'0004 001
%ELL ¥0'180'8c$ £9'L60'v9V$ £9'2L1'e6v$ 96'/22'986'1$  08'698'661$ £9'00v'82¢v'2$  00°0% £9°00¢'8.1'2$ SSV10 HYIND3Y _mm_mﬁwm 211710011 1°000) 00+
wey % |eg 1ebpng eouriqwnoug aoueleqg alA uaung 196png 15 sjusunsnlpy  186png uonduosag JaquINpN 1UNoooy

80UB[RQ 048Z YM SJUN0SDE BAldeUl 8pnjoxT [
goue(eq 0Jaz UYim slunodoe juld [ soueiqunoue aid epnjou| ]

Y202/ /S

abuey s1eQ Aq |IBl8Q 9oURIGWINOUT i)
¥c0e/LE/S ‘Bleg oyl

¥202-€20Z :JE9A |edsld
NNY FHNLIANIdX3 ANNd TVHINTD

9le wol4

uonesnp3 jo pieog PIOjieH M3N JO UMO |



:8leg ot

abuey a1eq Ag |lela@g soueIqUINOUT J8lji4 .

vc0c/1e/S ¥202e/1/S

82UE[BQ 018Z Y)IM SIUN0J0E juld []

;e wou-

BoUE|Eq 018Z YIM SIUN0IE BAloeU| apnjox3 [
sourIqUINDUS aid apnjou| []

4 :abed 181’8202 Ipviebpngmidguen1oids  podsy NV 9G'80: L} ¥202/ee/S0  ‘pelulid
%0000+ 00°00}$ 00'0$ 00°00}+$ 00°0% 00'0$ 00'00}+$ 00°0% 00'00}$ MVE-S3ITddNS TYNOILONHLSNI LEL'LOD'ELY 0222 001
%9z ve  L589% 66'65% 05'821$ 05 LL$ 00°0$ 00'002$ 00°0% 00°002% AINY-S317ddNS TYNOILONHLSNI LEL'0DD'6L9'0222 001
%005,  L0°SEH'1$ 00°0% 10'SelL't$ €6'V.E$ 00°0% 00°00S'+$ 00°0$ 00'005't$ - §311ddNS ¥ SADIAHIS <_mw_x LEL E0DZLE'0222°001
%00'00L  00'00S$ 00°0$ 00'005$ 00°0$ 00°0$ 00°005$ 00°0% 00°005% - §317ddNS % S30IAY3S <m_m__u_”__ LE1'200°219°0222 001
%0000 00°005% 000% 00°005$ 00'0$ 00'0$ 00°005$ 00°0% 00°005% - $311ddNS B SI0IAYIS <_ov_w_m_ LEL'LOO'L9'DZ2E 001
%eSey  GG'992'9L$ 81'29t$ £L'9217'91L$ l2°leg' 1es 22'266'c$ 00°052'8E$ 00°0% 00'05¢'8E$ 0122 - uoldnAsU| Jo Juswanoiduwi| oun4

%0000+ 00°059% 00°0% 00'059% 00°0$ 00°0% 00°059% 00'0$ 00'059% $334 % 53na 0£1°000'068'0422°004
%6l've  1SELE$ 00°0$ Lg'eses 6%'925% 00°0% 00°008$ 00'0% 00'008% AYVYHET 'dOT3A3A 'H0Yd 0E£1°000'619°0422 001
%Lyl 98°EL$ 00°0% 98'€L$ v1'92v$ 00°0% 00'005$ 00°0% 00'005$ ONIHOVIL IAILYAONNI 0£1'000°'819°0422'004
%er'l9  01°/92'2$ 8L'c9l$ 92'626'2$ 2,'0.G't$ 00°02E$ 00°00S'v$ 00°0% 00'005't$ SIVIHALYW WNTNOIYHEND 0€1°000°2+9'0422 00L
%0000L  00°00€$ 00°0% 00°00€$ 00'0$ 00°0% 00'00E$ 00°0% 00'00€$ DNILNIHd 0£1°000'€65°0122 00k
%/1'vs  0S'218% 00°0% 05'¢18$ 05'/89% 00'0$ 00'005'1$ 00'0% 00°00S't$ S3IDIAHIS A3SYHOHNd 0E1°000'065°0L 22 00k
%le'ly  61'S60'L$ 00'0$ 6/°G60'L$ 12'v06'L$ 2c'zers 00'000'G1$ 00'0% 00'000'G1$ MHOM WNTNOIYEND 0EL'000'52€ 0422 001
%00 (7€) 00'0$ (17e$) L¥°£00'S$ 00'0$ 00'000'G$ 00°0% 00°000'5$ ANIWJOT3AIA 44V1S 0EL 000°¥2€ 0423 004
%6y 02'/62't$ 00'0$ 0z'.62'1$ 08'202's$ 00061 c$ 00°000'01$ 00°0$ 00°000'0+$ NIZH NOILINL TYILHYd 0E+'00022€°0422 00}
%0¥" | GB'266'H$ 6€°'708'LL$ ¥2'162'€L$ 9/'/9€'82L$ LZ2LO'ELS 00'59t'2rL$ 00'0$ 00'S9L'2rL$ 0E|¢ - S8JIAI8S yyea ound

%0000L  00°005$ 00°0$ 00'005$ 00°0$ 00°0$ 00°005$ 00'0$ 00°005% S3SHNN - INFWLIND3 62L'000°0EL 0812 00}
%ee'9e  69'126% 66°0L$ 89°2E6$ 2€'/95'2$ 56'85% 00'005'e$ 00'0% 00°00S'e$ $3NddNS HLTY3H 621°000°069°0E12°004
%000  00°0% 000% 00°0$ 00°000'c$ 00°0$ 00'000'c$ 00°0$ 00°000'c$ HOSIAQY TvIa3n 621'000°02€ 0E12 004
%0006 (00°009%) 00°0% (00°009%) 00°009'2$ 00091$ 00°000'2$ 00°0% 00°000'2$ J1N1ILSENS SISHNN 'S3ILY VS 621°000'7} 1 '0E4200L
%880 9L LLL'LS ob'e6L'LLS 95'v96'cL$ y¥'002'021$ 92'€6L'2t$ 00'SOL'EELS 00°0$ 00'59tL'EEL$ ASHNN 'SII-YIVS 621'000'2L L'0ELZ'004
%g1'1-  (00°08%) 00°0% (00°08%) 00°088'9% 00°0$ 00°008'9% 00°0% 00'008'9% 00€E| - UoRINP3 JNPY :ouny

%gl't-  (00°08%) 00°0$ (00°08%) 00°088'9% 00°0% 00'008'9$ 00°0$ 00'008'9% NOILYONAd3 LInay £21'€09°095'00€E 1'00L
%8¢ 00'€9€'L5$ LE'VEE'62CS 1£'269'982% 9/°088'%G2'L$ 2¢'660'L22% £1'8/5'I¥0'2$ 00'626'9/% £1'€09'v96'L$ 002} - uolieonp3 [efoedg :ound

%egey  00'GBILS 00°0% 00'681$ 00°052$ 00°0$ 00'SEVS 00'0$ 00°SEV$ $334%S3Na 021°000°068'00Z L '004
%e6’L  G9'/S$ 0E'v82'1$ S8 IYE'LS S1'859'L$ 00°65% 00°000°e$ 00°0$ 00°000'€$ a3ds - IN3WdIND3 021'000'0E 002100}
%pl- (L9v1$) 18’891 (4818 98'5¥8% 00°0% 00000't$ 00°0$ 00°000't$ Q3dS - $311ddNS ONIHOVAL 021'000'919°002}'00L
%YLy G9'0EE'9L$ 0S'L6¥'1$ Slges'LL$ S8°/21'9/€% 22'/E6'69% 00°000'v6E$ 00°0% 00°000'6E$ NOILINL 02}'£09'095°002 100}
%Sy'sz  ¥¢'965'2$ 00°0% ¥2'965'2$ 9/°09'/% 00°0$ 00°002'0L$ 00°0$ 00'002'0+$ 30IALIASNI 021°000'¥2€'008 4 00k
%91 ze-  (BL9LL'E$) 00'SS1$ (81195'2$) 8L'195'21$ 00'6.$ 00°000'0L$ 00°0% 00°000'01$ $3NddNS DNILSIL 02}°000°+LE'002 1 00k
%5069 SC'ES6'LL$ 00°0$ G2'es6'L1S SL°9v0'8$ 00°0L1$ 00°000'92$ 00'0$ 00'000'92$ SLINSNOD ® SNOILYNTVYAT 021 000°€+£'002L 00}
%l59l-  (L5°€56'v$) 00°0$ (LG5°€56'V$) 1G'ES6'vES 96'EVS'GLE 00°000'0€$ 00°0% 00'000'0€$ S31dVHIHL-SIOIAYIS TidNd 021 000°ZLE0021 001
%0000t 00°000'L$ 00°0% 00'000'$ 00°0% 00°0$ 00°000°'L$ 000% 00'000'}$ GNNOZIWOH 024°000'L LE'002) 00k
way % l|eq 1ebpng  aouriqwnoulg aouejeg alA wauny 1ebpng 1o sjusunsnipy  1ebpng uonduosag Jaquinp 1unoooy

¥202-620Z :1edA [eosiy

NNH FHNLIAN3IdX3 ANNd TYHINTD

uoneonp3 jJo pieog pJojlieH MaN JO UMO ]



e :abed /€7 1'e20e lpviebpngmidguenioids  Lodey NV 9G:80° L} ¥202/€2/50 pdjulld
%0568  00°0/E'G$ 00'0% 00'02£'S$ 00°0€£9$ 00°0$ 00°000'9% 00°0% 00'000'9% S3DIAH3S HO3 /HOHd £EL'$O0'0ZE 026200
%LL65 €1 16G$ 00'0% £2'/65% 127e0v$ 000% 00°000'+$ 00°0$ 00°000't$ 1SSV WAVY-LO 'SV VS €ELPOO'ELL'0ZE2 001
%000  00°0% 09°298'v$ 08'258'v$ 09'€€2'85% 08'258'v$ 0v'980'€9$ 00'0$ 0¥'980'c9% S30IAYTS T¥OSId 'SIIHVIVS EEL'PO0ZL 1 0282001
%6e0  ¥9LZLS 88'0Gt'2$ 25'8.5'e$ 88'660'0E$ 10°022'T$ 0v'9.29'2e$ 00'0% 0¥'829'2e$ EEEEENMelols! £61'E00241'02E2°001
%bsL  ¥2'050'L$ 0c'162's$ vy LOE'9$ 9}'¥96'19% 02'152's$ 09'592'89% 000% 09°'592'89% 1SSV IAILYLSININGY 'SIIHVIVS ££1°200°211'0282°001
%6e’t-  (00°005'2$) ¥¥'SO8'ELS Pr'G9E' LS 95'v88'891L% 9€'598'E1L$ 00°052'08+$ 00'0$ 00'052'08}+$ LIN3ANILINIHILNS 'SAIHYIYS £S1'500'L LY 0282004
%l0vL  B8S'€L9'S$ 00°0$ 85°€£9'G$ er'1S9'veES 0L'215'9% 00'G2E'0v$ 00'0% 00°S2E'0v$ 0}€g - uoleanp3 Jo pJeog :sunj

%zzzz  09'G99'9% 00'0$ 05'599'9% 0G'vEE'ECS 00°90€$ 00°000'0e$ 00'0$ 00°000'0e$ oIl Z€1'500°168'01E2001
%geel-  (BE0EQ'L$) 00°0$ (6€°0€0"L$) 6£'0£2'8% 09'/12's$ 00'002'2$ 00°0% 00'00/'2$ 308 -$334 ¥S3NA 2€1'500°068'01E2'00L
%sl'or-  (ESTLOPS) 00°0% (es 19v$) €519V LS 0S'1ve$ 00'000°1$ 00'0% 00°000°'L$ 3089 - $317ddNS 301440 2€1°500°069'0L€2'004
%2208 00°005% 00'0$ 00°005$ 00'S2t 1§ 00°05¢$ 00'529'L$ 00'0% 00'G29'L$ AHV13HO3S QHVO8 'SIIHVYTVS ZEL'G00°THL'0LER 001
%sLez  LE/ES'IES 0€'90v'2$ /9EVE'EVS EEVL6'60L$ 2v'ese'9s 00'898'ESH$ 00°0$ 00'858'eS+$ 0eez - Abojouyos] dung

%0000L 00°00%$ 00'0$ 00°00v$ 00'0$ 00°0$ 00°00v$ 00'0$ 00°00v$ $334 ANV S3NA ¥£1°000°068'0822'004
%el0  00°0+$ 00'0% 00°0L$ 00°066'.$ 00°0$ 00'000'8% 00°0$ 00'000'8% LNTIWCINDO3 #€1°000°0€£°0822°001
%1669 LO'IELS 00'0% LO'LELS 66'89% 00°0% 00°002% 00°0$ 00°002% S311ddNsS ¥E1'000'069'0€22 004
%6l'98  00'v¥¥'8e$ 00'0$ 00'v¥¥'8cs 00'955't$ 00°0% 00°000'€€$ 00°0% 00'000'EES IHYMLH0S WNTNDIHEND $E1°000°219°0€22°004
%glEL  L¥'89G'E$ 8E'8ET' 1§ 58'908'v$ SL'E6L LSS 85°€26% 00°000'92% 00°0% 00°000'92$ JONVNILNIVW/SHIVEIY ¥E1°000°20' 062 004
%00°001 00°008'1$ 00°0% 00'008°}$ 00'0% 00°0$ 00'008'}$ 00°0% 00°008'+$ LNIWJOTIAIA TYNOISSIIOHd $E1°000%2€'0822 004
%09'sl  68'€81'cH 00'8¥.L$ 68°1£6'2$ 11'890'LL$ 00'6% 00'000'v1$ 00'0$ 00°000'¥1$ S3ISNIOIMMVYOINHOIL $E1°000' L 2€'0E22 00k
%000  00°0% 26'611'GS 26'6L1'GH 80°8€£0'G9% ¥8'61¥'s$ 00'85¥'0L$ 00°0% 00'8S¥'0L$ INILHOGdNS 'SIIYY VS ¥E1°000°21 L '0E22 00}
%2029  L9'TE6'2IS 26'225'2$ 6G°SS¥'SLS L"86E'SH O¥'gers 00'%58'02$ 00°'0% 00'%58'02$ 0222 - s19jua) elps|y Areiqry ouny

%egs'9e  00'8ve$ 00'0$ 00'8ve$ 00°+EPS 00'0$ 00'6.,9$ 00°0% 00'629$ $334 ANY S3na LE1°100°068°0222 00}
%S.'e6 8006 00'0$ 20°05.% 86'6V$ 00'0$ 00'008% 00°0% 00°008% 1INV - $317ddNS AV /LNIWJINDI 1£1'800°062'0222 001
%9.85  £0'G1E$ 00°0% £0°G1e$ 16'V81$ 00°0$ 00'00%$ 00°0$ 00°00v$ - $311ddNS AY szs_n.,ammmm__ LE1'200'0EL 0222 00L
%0000+  00°00+$ 00°0% 00°00v$ 00°0% 00°0% 00°00v$ 00°0% 00°00v$ VA - SAddNS AY /LNIWIND3 LEL100'0EL 0222 00}
%9l L0'962$ €0°026'1$ 0L9le'es 06'€E$ 00°0% 00'05¢'2$ 00°0% 00°052'c$ 1INV - SY008 AHvHElT LE1'€00'EY9'0222 004
%l0€9 80252 00°0% 20e5es 86°L71$ 00°0% 00'007% 00°0% 00°00%% S3HN - SHO08 AHvHEN LEL'200°€V9'0222 00+
%s6'z9-  (0E'GLED) 06°2t5$ 09°291$ ov'zer$ Ov'eer$ 00'009% 00'0$ 00°009$ V8 - SHOOH AHYHEN LEL 1009 0222 001
%92'es  G0'92v$ 00'0% 50'92v$ G6'ELE$ 00°0$ 00°008% 00'0$ 00'008% LNY - ST¥2Ia0I43d LEL'E00'2¥9'0222 001
%5625 0L'2LI$ 00°0$ 0L'2LI$ 06'25+$ 00°0$ 00°G2€$ 00'0$ 00'52e$ S3HN - STV¥OIQ0IH3d 1E1'200°'2¥9°0222 004
%e0'6s  0bLLL$ 00°0$ 0L'LL1$ 06'22t$ 00°0% 00°00£$ 00'0% 00°00€$ Y8 - STYOI0IY3d LEL"100'2¥9°0222 00}
%Eesz.  00'8.6'/$ 00'0$ 00'846'L$ 00'220'c$ 000% 00°000'L+$ 00°0% 00°000'+1$ SNOILJIHOSENS INIMT-NO LEL'100'L 90222 001
%0000t 00°001$ 00°0% 00'001$ 00'0$ 00°0$ 00'00+$ 00°0% 00°001$ S3HN-S3IddNS TYNOILONYLSNI LE1°200°619°0222°001
wey 9% |eg 1ebpng aoueiqwnoul] aoueeg alA uaung 1ebpng 19 sjuawisnlpy  19bpng uonduossg Jagquinp 1unoooy

§0UE[E] 018Z YUM SIUNOOOE BAlveU] apnjox3 [
BOUEBleq 0197 Ulm Sjunoooe juud [] aoueIquinous aid apn|oy| _H_

¥202/L/S  eleq wol

abuey a1eq Ag j1rele@ @oueiqUINOUT 18}14
¥c0e/1E/S ‘|leg oL

202-€20C :1ed) |eosly

NNH FHNLIANIdX3 ANN TVHINTO

uolleonp3 jo pieog pIiojlieH MaN JO UMO |



¥ :abed 1£°1'€202 [pvieBpngmidguen1oids  :podey NV 95:80: )} ¥208/82/50 PajuLd
%00001  00'000'0L}$ 00°0$ 00'000'01 1% 00°0% 00'0$ 00°000'0+1$ 00°0$ 00'000'0}$ S317ddNS ADYINT 13N #G1°100'269'0092°004
%52 ¥90LES S8'EPES 6v'719$ 15688+ £9'ee9'c$ 00°00S'El$ 00°0% 00'00S'€L$ ANV - S311ddNS SONYNILNIVI #S1°E00° 169'0092°00}
%699  9¥'¢eS'S$ 00'0$ 9%'225's$ ¥S°L2L'e$ 15°652% 00'05¢'8$ 00°0$ 00'052'8$ 3HN - §317ddNS JONYNILNIVIV ¥$1°200°L69'0092 004
%eg'vl  ¢6902'L$ sg'eves L2061 £2'66L'9% 8E/0V$ 00°052'8% 00°0% 00'052'8$ MvE - 531TddNS JONYNILNIVIN 751100’ L69'0092'00+
wvle  00€06$ 00°0% 00'€06$ 00°£60'cE$ 000% 00°000'€E$ (00°000°0+$) 00°000'€¥$ JONVHNSNI ALIMIEYIT® dOHd #51°000°265'0092 00+
%b80c BL 566V 00°0% 9.'G66'v$ 89'626'81$ 01'909'L$ 9¥'G/6'c2$ OF'SL6'0L$ 00'000'€L$ H3AIAOHd 3DIAYIS LINYILNI #51°000°EES"0092 00k
wzve-  (ve'06g$) 00'0$ (v 062$) ¥2'062'2t$ 90°068% 00'000'2L$ 00°0$ 00°000'2+$ SNOILYOINNWINOD $S1'L00'2ES 0092 00}
%8, Ze'862$ 00'0$ 2e'862% 89'L0L'ES 09°+99% 00'000'v$ 00°0$ 00°000'v$ Emz..z%nﬂﬁ&mmﬂ $51'000'LEY'0092 004
%z992 ESVYLLES 00'28L't$ £6'925'€€$ /¥'8EL'S8% 00'0LE'8% 00'692'611$ 00°0$ 00'692'61+$ S1OVHINOD 30IAHIS #51°000'80 0092 00k
%20 9€79/% 6'6LY'v$ 0€'96%'v$ 0/'£05'8S5$ L0081 'v$ 00°000'€9$ 00°'000'0L$ 00'000°eS$ m_oz<zm_hz_h\o§_ﬁM_wm_mM $51'000'90%'0092 00+
%ee'6l  19'160'C2$ 00°0% 19°'160'22$ 6£°806'16% 12 'v6€'8% 00°000'%L1$ 00'0$ 000007 LS 3SN43Y 'S3ILNILN #51°000'20p"0092 004
%v666L- (SE'666'L$) 00°0% (5£'666'1$) SE'666'2$ G/°259% 00°000'1$ 00°0% 00°000°1L$ S3LNLILSANS 'SV VS ¥51°100'7 1 1'0092'00}
%z9ve  ¢8'88E'cS 00'0$ 29'88€'2$ 09'2lE'L$ £5'986$ 2y 10L'6% gy Log't$ 00'005'8% IWILHIAO ‘STIHY VS #SL°LO0'E L L0092 00
%ge'el  00°0£0'1$ 00°0$ 00'0£0'$ 00'0€6'9$ 00°0$ 00°000'8% 00'0$ 00'000'8$ z<_oo._.m:om._m_>_m__ﬂ¢m__«m ¥$1°200°21 1°0092'004
%15°0- (89'8SE" +$) 00°9S.'61% 2e°L6£'81% 82'258'5ves 00'962'12$ 09'6v2'792$ 00°0% 09'6v2'v92$ SNVIQOLSND 'STIHYIVS ¥51°L00°2} 10092 001
%L G6'LL9'L$ 00'2Z19'6E$ S6'eee Lv$ /6'695'96€$ Lv'821'9€$ ¢6'/BL'EYYS 00'0% 26'/BL'EVYS 012 - 88910 |00YOg dun4

%00°001 00°05¢2't$ 00'0$ 00°052't$ 00°0$ 000% 00052 t$ 00°0% 00°05¢'+$ $334 ANV S3Na L¥1° 10006804 %2 00}
%0099  ¥6'068% 00°0$ ¥6°068% 90'65¥$ 00°0$ 00°0SE'1$ 00'0$ 00'0S€'+$ LNV-LNININO3 LvL'E00'0EL'0LYE 00k
%yge- (L2 iees) 00°0$ (1z'122$) 12'96.% 00°0% 00'6/5% 00°0% 00'5/5$ SIHN-LNIWINO3 L¥L°200°0E2 0Lb2 001
%ESL  CE'EPS 65°'5$ 16°8v$ 60'925% 00°0% 00'5/5% 00°0$ 00'625% Mva-LNINGINDI L1 LOD'0EL O1P2 00!
%p0e9 ¢le0L't$ yL0ves 92eve'L$ vLL5/% 00°0% 00'00.'2$ 00°0$ 00°002'2$ INV-S311ddNS 301440 Lt '£00'089°0L2 00k
%eLoe 6V 1ESS 00'0% 6¥'1€c$ 16'816$ L¥'e8s$ 00°0S}'t$ 00°0% 0070511 $ SIHN-S3ddNS 01440 L¥1'200°069°01¥2Z 001
%evy-  (£6°09$) 00°0$ (26°05%) 16°002'L$ 00°0$ 00°0SL'+$ 00°0% 00°0SH't$ MvE-53ITddNS 301440 L¥1°L00'069°01v2 004
%sLer- (0211 1$) 00°0% (02°115'1$) 02'L10's$ 96'04L% 00°00S'e$ 00°0% 00'005'€$ SENS 1SSV NINAY 'S3IHY VS LPL' 10011 '0LPZ 001
Wity  OV'LL2'L$ LL'¥20'61$ /1°20E'92% G/ 'v6.'8ELS 9E'e6Y'2LS 26'960'G9L$ 00'0$ 26'960'G91+$ INLYYLISININGY Amm_mﬁwm LYL LOO 2L 0LbZ 00t
%g20-  (00°000°2$) 95'Lve'0C$ 95 L¥E'8LS ¥¥'660'8¥2$ 29'L¥E'2eS 00 Fv'992$ 00°0% 00+ ¥¥'992$ SHOLVYHLISININGY ‘S3IBY VS #1100 L1 01¥Z 001
%gee  GL'0LL'2L$ 6E°/9G'9¢e$ v1°8EL'8E$ GO'L12'92ES 82'66€'L2$ 61'6V6'79ES 62848 0v 0€2'¥9ES 0ZEZ - 30O [eu8D ouny

%9e'68 00°LIC'ES 00°0$ 00°L1'e$ 00°€8eS 00'0% 00°009'e$ 00°0$ 00°009'€$ '0'0-8334 ¥53N0 €€}¥00°068 02EZ 001
%L1z 28'98% 00°0$ 29'98% gLeies 00°0% 00°00v$ 00°0% 00°00v$ 00~ IN3WdIND3 €EL¥00'0€£'0262 00}
%0z ve 620LL'cH 26'2e$ L2 evL'es 8S°GL¥$ 0L'951$ 6/'8tc'e$ 6L°8LL$ 00'005'2$ DNISSIO0Hd Yiva £€1°¥00'€69'0262 00k
%ze'se  99'650°'L$ SIS 1B ELL'LS 61°928'L$ L2'Svv$ 00'000'c$ 00°0% 00°000'€$ 00 - $311ddNS 301440 £E1 00 069'02£2 00+
%0000+ 00°00¢$ 000$ 00°002$ 00'0$ 00'0$ 00°002% 00°0$ 00'002$ SIv0IQ0IY3d £E1°¥00 2¥9 02E2 004
%0000k 00°052$ 00°0$ 00'052$ 00'0$ 00'0$ 00'052$ 00°0$ 00'052$ ONILNIHd €EL'P00'E6S 0262004
%500  LE'LE 00°0% 1% £9'866'2$ 86°/5% 00°000'€$ 00'0$ 00'000't$ SIONIFHIINOD/SIOHSHHOM EE1 P00 ¥2E 0262 001
way % |eg ebpng eouwiqunoul aoueleg alLA wauny 1ebpng 1o sjusunsnlpy  196png uonduosaq Jaquinp junoooy

90UE[EQ 0J9Z UYiIM SJUNOOOE BAljorUl 8pnjox3 []
90UB[E] 018Z YHM SIUN03e juld [] soueiquinous eid apnjoul [}

¥202/L/S

sbuey aje( Aq |1E18Q 22UBRIQUINDUT Ja)I4
¥20d/1E/S 8leg ol

v202-€202 :JE9A [EISI4
NNYd FHNLIANIdX3 ANN4 TVHINTD

:9leq woi4

uonesnp3 Jo pieog pJojlieH MaN JO UMO |



abuey ale( Ag (leleQ 8oURIQUINOUT 8]
¥20¢e/LE/S

Qe o]

¥20¢/1/S

82UB[RQ 0J8Z UM SIUN0o9R Julld []

a1 WoliS

90UB[Rq 019Z Y}IM SIUN0J0E aAloeUl 3pnjox3 [

sourIquInous aid epnjou| ]

] :ebed 1€°1°€202 lpyieBpngmidyuenoids  podey WY 95:'80:L1L  +80g/€2/S0 :Paluld
%piop  (02°48€'2$) 0L /88'€$ 00°00S'L$ 00'611'v$ 96°12€'L$ 00'6¥6'S$ 00'6t6'S$ 00°0% S2/0£/9 S8leleS 619 Y3l S20'619°2L1°0021 007
%68'SL  ¢CEVE'LS 80°0v6'2e$ 0£'£88'0E$ 0L°9L1L'6L$ 20'298'9$ 00°000'05$ 00'000'05$ 00'0$ G2/0e/9 saueles -1 19 v3dl 5201 19°241°0021 00
%000 00°0% 00°0% 00°0$ 62°99% 00°0% 62°99% 00°0$ 62°99% L0E - 619 dHV ‘pund
%000 00°0% 00°0% 00'0$ 62°99% 00°0% 6.°99% 00'0$ 6.°99% S0¢l - -ound

£202/0g/9 seldxs
%000 00°0% 00°0%$ 00°0$ 6.'99% 00'0% 6.'99% 00°0% 62'99% dIND3 XP %-3Hd 618 ¥3AI dUv 0Z1'€00'0EL'G02}' L OE
%000 00°0$ 00°0% 00°0% 96°LLS 00°0% 96°L1$ 000$ 96°L1$ 00€ - 619 V3Ql pund
%000 00°0% 00°0% 00°0$ 96°L1$ 00°0% 96°L1L$ 00'0% 96°/1$ G0gt - oung

¥202/0E/9

%000  00°0% 00°0$ 00°0$ 96°L1% 00°0$ 96°LL$ 00'0$ 96°L1$ 3 8id LONYLSNI HOLNL 649 ¥3AI 02}'100'228'502 1 '00E
%619 18'75E'265$ 12 /16'896% 20'cLe' 195" 1% ¥2'6.6'€00'8% /8°'5¢1'98.% 92'152'595'6% $6°00¢'L¥1$ 2e'050'8117'6% 00| - pun4 {BI8USE) puny
%898 78'602'251$ 12'862'L2% S0'80G'v8L$ 9/'%1€'929'1$ 20'216'66% 18'2e8'0l8'1$ LE'ELY'25S 0S°'60%'852'1$ 0019 - syjaueg aakojdw3 ounjg
%1569 692r0'L$ 00'0$ 69°2r0'L$ LE'LSP$ 00'0% 000051 $ 00'0$ 00°005'L$ J3AYHL NINQY 181°000°165°0019°001
%g6el  06'2.L'9% 00'0% 06°LLL'9% 01'2el'1v$ 00'0$ 00'00S'8v$ 00°0% 00°005'8v$ dINOD SNIWHHOM 191°000'G12 0019001
%er'sl-  (00°0¥SS$) 00°0% (00°0¥5$) 00'0%0't$ 00°0$ 00°00G'e$ 00°0$ 00°00S'€$ dINOD INIWAOTANINN 191°000%12°00+9°004
%g69s  (92°281'9%) 00°0YF$ (92°1¥0'9%) 92'/t0'21% 00'088% 00°000°LL$ 00'0% 00°000'L1$ vS1 L91°000"t L2 0019°001
%es0-  (68°272$) €1'ecl's$ ¥ S88'v$ 9.°68¢' Lv$ L£'920'p$ 00°12£'9v% 00°0% 00°L2€'9v$ /Sy ISNIdX3 dWOD a3HY343a 191'100'602°0019°001
%G1 00°062'L$ 00'0% 00°0S.'1% 00°€2L'0S1$ 00'0$ 00'6L¥'2S51% 00°0$ 00'ELP'2S1$ AaNN4 NOISN3d NMOL 191°000°602°0019°001
%lve-  (92°0v8'L$) 0¥'980'¢L$ ¥9'5v2'01$ 9€'212'99% 12'8€9'9% 00'85¥'9/$ 00°0% 00'8S1'92$ 3YYOIg3IN 191000902 00+9°00+
%GL'S 00'€.9's$ B9'BEQ'6$ 89°LLE'GLS 2€°98€'c8$ 95691 '8% 00°00.'86% 00°0% 00'00/'86% ALIHNO3S V1008 191°000°602°00L9°001
%sLz-  (Ly'G6v$) 00'0$ (L7'567$) 16°725'81LS 00'0% 06'620'81% 00'0$ 05'620'8L$ JONVHNSNI 311 191°000702'0019°001
%6L'LL /S 2/5'1GL$ 00°0$ 26°215'1G1$ ¥/'€12'202'L$  28'€02'08% LE'L6C'PSE' L LE'ELY'2SE 00'8/8'LOE'L$  IONVHNSNI TVIN3A 7 WOIQ3W 191°000'102°0019°001
w69 (62°06E$) 00'0$ (62 06€$) 62°066'5$ 00°0$ 00'009'5$ 00'0$ 00°009'5$ 0082 - UoJEONWWOY :aun
%00'vzh- (L6'EVLE) 00°0% (L6'¥.3) L6EVE'LS 00°0$ 00°009% 00'0% 00°009% ONISILHIAQY 951°000'LEG"0082 004
%20 89'€5E$ 00°0% 89'€5E$ 2€°9Y9'v$ 00°0$ 00'000'G$ 00'0$ 00'000'G$ A9Y1S0d 951000 0ES'0082° 004
%GS'e- (26°612'61$) 0’90091 1% £8'982'96% £1'85%'2L/9% L€7102'28% 96'vrL'€LL$ 96'clL'v1L$ 00'2€0'65.$ 00/2 - uollenodsuel| idnd :oun4
%0062 §9'089'81$ 00'0$ 59'089'8L$ L€'2€0'95$ SL'L29'%% 96°2LL'vL$ 96°2LL'vL$ 00'000'09% 13Nn3 §51°000215°0042°001
%gLzl-  (E6'6EE'L$) 00'0$ (£6°6EE"'1$) €6'6£€'TLS 00°0% 00°000'+1$ 00'0$ 00°000'}1$ H3IWWNS NOILYIHOdSNYHL 6510911570022 00}
%050z- (62'GEL'2eh) 00'0% (6z'5€1'22$) 62'GEL'0ELS 96°995'91$ 00'000'801$ 00°0$ 00'000'80L% 03 03dS SNYHL GS1°€08°LLG'0042°00}
%152 (00's26'71$) 0'900'911$ 0r'180°L01$ 09°056'8.7% 02'€96'09% 00'2£0'08S% 00°0% 00°2£0'085% SNYHL lidNd SGL°000°015'0042 001
%zlee GLLEC'TEL$ ¥2'159'92% 6t'G68'8Lc% 66°'G62'.29% 92'221'eS$ 8y’ 161'9v8% 88'9L1'21$ 09'¥10'vEBS 0092 - suoneisadQ jueld :oung
%gs'ie  GO'98E'2L$ 0L'gLes G1'865'CL$ S8'LOY'2eS 8€'6.8'c$ 00'000'GY$ 00'0$ 00'000'S¥$ g3sv31 'ININdIND3 $G1°000°LE£'0092 004
%I’ lE  €G°LE8'CS 00'0$ €5°LE8'2$ /¥'891'9% 00'0$ 00°000'6$ 00°0$ 00°000'6$ ANYdOHd ¥51°000'¥69'0092° 001
way 9 |eg 19bpng  soueIqWNOUD aoueeq aLA auny 196png 1o suswysnlpy  186png uonduossaq laquinp 1unoooy

P20c-€C0C :1eaA |edsld

NNH FHNLIANIdX32 ANNd TYHINTD

uonesnp3 jo pleog pJojlieH MapN jO UMO |



9 -abed VA AV lpy1ebpngmidyuenoids  ‘poday NV 95:80:LL 20e/ee/S0  ‘pejulld
%PL'9 0v'99% 00°0$ 0v'99% G/'S10'1% 00'0$ S1'280'L$ 00°0% §1'280'l$ 102l - ‘oung
%EL 6 0t"99% 00°0% 0v'99% SL'519% 00°0$ S1289% 00°0$ 51'289% £2/0€/6 8/EMPIEH Y28] SA3S 1O 021°£01°100° 1021 8Ly
%000 00°0$ 00°0% 00°0% 00'00€$ 00'0$ 00°00€$ 00'0% 00°00€$ €¢/0e/6 Bulures| 'dw3 $Q3s LO 021°901°100° 1021 B1¥
%000 00°0% 00°0% 00°0$ 00'001$ 00°0$ 00°00+$ 00°0$ 00°004$ £2/0€/6 A1ees uisu| SA3S LD 021'S01°100"L0Z L '8LY
%lp'eS  99'E8.'69% G2'80.'8% €lL'e6¥'8.% 9G'€10'2S$ 65°'G8.'8% 69°506'0EL$ 00'000'8.% 69'505'25% Slv - pund less3y ‘pung
%886 00°GLL'LL$ 00°0% 00'SLL'2L$ 00'588% 00°0$ 00'000'8.$ 00°000'8.% 00°0$ 0122 - uononsisu| Jo juswaaoidw| oun4
¥2/0E/6 PesH
%1886 00°GHL'LL$ 00°0% 00'GLL'2/$ 00'G88% 00°0% 00'000'8L$ 00°000'82$ 00°0$ 011yBY umo L |fews -HISS3 dHY 000°000'219°0122 G4
%g6°€l-  (CL'L1EELS) 52'80.'8% eLL8'1$ 95°'821'16% 65'G8/'8% 69'506'25% 00°0% 69°'G06'25% L0Z - oung
sa|eleg
%96EL- (21 LEE'L$) G2'80/'8% ELLLE' LS 95'8el 16% 65°58.'8% 69°G06'25% 00'0$ 69°G05'25$ JOIN L, $202/0E/6 HISST dBY 021°504300° 1021 'SLY
%000 00'0$ 00°0% 00°0% 65'166'/$ 00°0$ 6G°166'L$ 00'0% 65°166'L$ 1 - snuog || 18883 pung
%000 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 65°166'L% 00°0$ 65°166'2% 00°0% 65°166'2% L0¢) - ‘oung
. £202/0€/9 sasdxe
%000 00°'0$ 00°'0$ 00°0% 65°166'/L$ 00°0% 65'166'2$ 00°0% 65°'166'2% S3IYYIVS oI snuog j Jess3 021°001°1L00° LOZL b1y
%Le'0.  69'560'G9% 00°0% 69°'560'59% LE'L6¥'L2$ 00'0% 00'285'26% 00°222'87$ 00'01E'vP$ Olv -1uelg dv3Jyd :pund
%00°00L  00°222'8%$ 00°0% 00°2/2'8v$ 00°0% 00°0% 00°222'8%% 00°'/.2'8¥$ 00'0$ 012g - uononiisu| Jo jusweaoiduij :aun4
%0000L  00°222'8Y$ 00'0$ 00°L.2'8v$ 00'0$ 00'0$ 00'2/2'8V$ 00°222'8v% 00°0$ 9Z/0E/L SYI0EZYBSESH -dvIH 920°000°52€'0182 0Ly
%96'.E  69'818'9L$ 00°0$ 69'8LB'9L$ 1e°16v'22$ 00°0% 00°0LE'P¥S 00'0% 00'0LE'VPS L0gl - ‘oung
L¥90Z2VBSEH
%9626  69'8L8'0L$ 00°0% 69'818'91$ LE'L6r'L2$ 00°0% 000LE'PP$ 00°0% 00°0LE'PP$ S20g/0e/t UBID dv3Y 0Z1L'E0L°L00"L0ZL 0Ly
%85ve  99°0.6'LE$ letes'Le$ 68°L6v'G9% 0€£7196'88% S0'i8L'0L$ 6L'ELY' VSIS 00'880'0EL$ 61°SBE'VES 00¥ - v3dl ‘pung
%160 (18°'6/%) E¥'€69% 95'L19% LE'2SL'PLS L0'/26'LS /8'69.'71$ 00°0$ L8°69L'71$ 602t - oung "
$202/0€/9 jddns
%92z (L8'GL$) £¥'£69% 95'/19% 05'L¥2'e$ 20°286'L$ 90'65€'e$ 000% 90'65€'€$ ylew 'Aoeiallf uSSIINI -1 19 YAl 021'600°2 | 1'60Z 100
. ) +202/0E/9 SisoQ Bueq
%000 00'0% 00'0% 00°0% 00°0% 00'0$ 00°0% (00°555'¥$) 00'S55'v$ % yoeads PeIoeIIuDD -1 19 YIA! 0ZL°£00°2} L'6021 00p
$202/0€/9
%000 00'0$ 00°0% 00°0% 00'0$ 00°0% 00'0% (00'6.2E'V5) 00°6LE'V$ 51500 yg08 -mes Iidnd 119 v3ql 021°900°2t L '602} 00
%000  00°0% 00°0% 00°0$ 18'9.1'2$ 00°0% 18'9.t'e$ 00°0% 18°9.1'c$ ¥208/0E/9 1d -n9S 1idnd 119 vaal 021°$00°21 L '602 100V
%00'0 00°0$ 00°0% 00°0% 00'vE6'8S 00'0% 00°v€6'8%$ 00'v€6'8% 00°0$ $202/0e/9 LO -AM9S idnd 119 v3Q! 021700211 6021 00p
%000 000$ 00°0$ 00'0% 2€'619'6% 00°0% 2e'519'6% 00'0% ¢e519'6% 80cl - oung
. ) $202/0€/9 Q31411430
%000 00°0% 00°0$ 00°0% 2€'619'6% 00°0% 2e'619'6$ 00°0% 2e'G19'6$ d3dS Seueles -1 19 vIal 021 100°LLL'80Z 1 00F
%Gz'6z G5 9v0'8E$ 8/°/28'92% €€ 'v.8'v9% L9°E12'59% 86'€52'8% 00'880'0E}$ 00'880'0E1L$ 00°0% 00z - uoneoanpd [epads :ound
§2/08/9
%69'2.  0£'8LL'C$ 000$ 0E'8L2'2$ 0,°08.% 00°0% 00'667'c$ 0066+'c$ 00°0$ ‘Isu| 'yoa 'sanddng -1 19 v3al S20°L19°9L9°0021 00F
%000 00°0$ 00°0% 00°0% 00'519'e$ 00°0$ 00'519'e$ 00°G19'E$ 00°0% S2/0e/9 163 idnd -619 v3QI S20'619'2LE002 L 00F
%zv'vy  €L3LL'62% 000% £/'gl/'62% 12'252'LE$ 00'0% 00'520'/9% 00'520'29$ 00°0$ G2/0€/9 183 idnd -1 19 vaal 5201 19'2LE 0021 00y
waY % |eg obpng  aouriquINoug aoueleqg alA wuaung 186png 1o sjuswisnipy  1ebpng uonduosa( Jagquinp Junoooy
aouejeq 0I18Z UM SJUNODOE SAj10BUI Bpn|oX] D
sbury ajeq Aq |lel8g SdouBIqUINDUT 18)|I4 aouBeq 049Z YlIM SIUNOIIE Juld _U aoueiquinoua aud apnjoul _H_ 202-€202 :1edA |eosi4
pERGIGS  SESOSL ZEBCUE) SEIEA P NNY JHNLIANIdX3I ANNL TVHINTO

uollesnp3 jo pJeog plojlieH MaN JO UMO]



¥20c/Le/S

ajeqg ol

ve0e/ /S

:81e( woi

2 :abed 18718202 Ipyiebpngmidguenoids  podey WY 95:80: 11 ¥202/€2/50 :paluld
%00'00L 00'052$ 00°0% 00°052$ 00°0$ 00°0$ 00'05¢$ 00°0% 00°052$ ¥2/0e/9 s8IddnS -y-1| dllL 0000002 19°0122'2hY
¥2/08/9
%000 00°0% 00°'0$ 00°0% 00'9v2'L$ 00'0% 00'9v2'L$ 00°0$ 00'9%2'L$ S90INIRS PaseYdINg -y-|| BlIL 000°000°065°0122'2hy
%yloy  GSBLL'ES LO0LL$ 95'9¢28'c$ P 1v6'e$ Sv'861% 00'022'2% 00'0£2'1% 000% 0001 - voieonp3 Jeginbay :ound
%yl'ov  GSBLLES L0'0LLS 95'828'e$ ¥ LY6'e$ St'86L$ 0004L'L$ 00044'L$ 00°0% G3/0E/9 SOLE[RS-Y-|| BIIIL S20°000°24 10001 2vy
%9r'ze  89'PPS'OL$ 62'0EL'L$ /6'v19'€e$ €0°'L0e'Le$ S0'8L6'v$ 00'9/6'05$ (000£2'28) 00'97/'85% Ly - ¥ Hed | 8L ‘pung
%S6vy  81°G92% Z8'¥ZES 00'065% 00°0% 00°0$ 00'065% 00°0% 00'065$ 013g - UoNoNASU| J0 Juswaroidul| :oung
%6868  81°G9c% 28'62% 00'662$ 00°0% 00°0% 00'562$ 00°0$ 00°562% 62/0€/9 selddng-y-| &1L 620'000°219°0122 Lv
%000 00°0% 00'662$ 00'562$ 000% 00°0$ 00°'562$ 00'0$ 00°'662$ $2/0€/9 seyddng -y-| eilL 0000002190182 v
%leze  0§'6.2'91% /¥'S08'9% /6°'¥80'€e$ €0°L08' /2% S0'8I6'YS 00'98€'05% (00°022'L8) 00°'951'85$ 0001 - uoleonp3 tenbey :oung
%L2'16  05'6.2'9L$ L¥'508'9% 16'v80'ee$ €0°56€'8%$ 50'8L6'v$ 00°08%'LES (00°022'2$) 00°052'6$ G2/0E/9 Selteles-v-| 8l L §20°000°211'000L Lbb
%000 00°0% 00°0$ 00'0$ 00'906°81$ 00°0% 00'906'81$ 00°0% 00'906'8+$ $2/0€/9 SOlBIRS -Y-| AL 00000024 1000} L¥y
%6566  00'0G2'L6V$ 00°0% 00'0S.'26¥% 00'052'2$ 00'0% 00'000'00S$ 00°0$ 00'000'005% 0EY - WelY roqg :pund
%5566  00°06L'/6V$ 00°0% 00°0S.'26%% 00'05¢'2%$ 00°0% 00'000'005$ 00°0% 00'000'005% 0092 - suonesadQ lueld :oun4
%G5'66  00°0S.'L6V$ 00°0% 00'0S2'L6V$ 00°062'2$ 00°0% 00'000'005% 00'0$ 00°000'005$ £2/08/6 rOQ /SO0 920°000°90%"0092 0E Y
%Gl'sy  0S°'928'BES 00'¥/8'c$ 0S'00L'2v$ 05'662'€v$ oo'evi'es 00°000'98% 00°0% 00°000'98% leb - vdHdv ‘pundg
%0l'se  009ZL'6% 00'v/8'e$ 00'000°E1L% 00°000'€L$ 00'0% 00°000'92$ 00°0$ 00'000'92% 0122 - uononusuy| Jo juswaaoidw) :oun4
%0L'se  00°9¢1'6$ 00'v.8'€$ 00°000'€L$ 00°000'€L$ 00'0% 00°000'9¢$ 00'0% 00'000'92$ ¥2/1e/2) pesH o1 by -vdyvy ¥20°000'72€'0122 L 2F
%056y  06'002'62$ 00°0% 05'00.'62$ 05°662'0€%$ 00°¢rL'es 00°000'09% 00°0% 00°000'09% 002} - uoneonpy jeadg oun4
92/08/9
%056  0G'002'62% 00°0% 05°00Z'6¢2$ 05'662'0€$ 002rt'es$ 00°000'09% 00°0% 00°000'09% ‘08dg Y)|BSH [BJUBIN |00YIS -YdHY 920°000'2LE"002! 18k
%lg'2e  06'PSE'801L$ 8c112'2$ BL'990'L LIS 29'eel'vees 9v'882'92% 00'008'see$ 00°0% 00'008'GEES 611 - Ueln YyijeaH JolABYag pun4
%lg2€  06'PSE'80LS Bz LLL'cS 8L°990'1L1$ 28'eel'vees 9%'88¢'9¢$ 00'008'56E$ 00°0% 00'008'SeE$ 002! - uoneonp3 |eedg :ound
Y2/OE/6
%e9'8e  ¥8'926% 00°0% ¥8°9¢6$ IL'ELt' IS 00°0% 00°00%'¢$ 00°'0$ 00°00%'2$ 99IMBS Ul -ATH UlleaH ‘Aeysg ¥20'100'72€ 0021 6L
%66€c  £9'€S0'L$ 00'0$ E€9'ES0'L$ LE'910'eS 00'0$ 00'00}'E$ 00'0$ 00°00L'e$ p3/1/L 8OIMBS Ul -UllesH |BiojaBysg 000°000'v2E" 0021 61v
¥2/0E/6 "Mog
%0000L  00'000'v$ 00°0% 00'000'v$ 00°0% 00°0% 00°000'v$ 00°0% 00'000'v$ 498 B "UdInd -ATY UNeSH “ABYdg $20°L00'ELE'002L 6L
pe/L/L ‘MBg
%00°0 00'0$ 00'0% 00°0$ 80°'959'9% 00°0% 80'859'9% 80'859% 00'000'9% Uoe ¥ ‘yaInd -UieeH |eiolneyag 000°000'E LE'002 L ‘61
P2/0E/6
%l0oer G/'G62'LES 00'0% G.°562'LES S2'v02'ers 00'998'02$ 00°00S'vL$ 00°0% 00°00S'¥L$ jloiAed-UON -ATH UlIEBH ‘ABUSE $20°L00'2LE002L'BLY
vE//L
%s6'8e  00°hLZ'OLS 00'0$ 00'LLL'OLS 00'682'91$ 00'0$ 00°005'£2$ 00°000'7L$ 00'00S'EL$ llo1Aed-UON -UjieaH feioireyag 000'000'2LE002} 61¥
%.9%L  P0'60F'2LE g8eLLL'eS geogh'sle 89'¥8Y'69% 9v'2eh'ss 00'509'v8% 00°0% 00'509'8% ¥2/0€/6 ltoihed -ATH ulesH ‘Aeyeg $20°L00°241'002L 6Ly
-, 1 - . 0 . 1 . T ) . T VN\—‘\_.
%S09E  ¥9'856'Lv$ 00°0$ ¥9'8G56'/¥$ 82'8.0'G8% 00°0$ 26'9E0'EELS (80°'859'V1$) 00'669'271$ lloshed -lueln yifesH |eloireyag 000°000°Z1 1003} 6L
%19 0v'99% 00°0$ 0b"99% S/'G10'1$ 00°0% G1°280°'L$ 00°0% S1'280'L$ gl - puedig SQ3S LD pung
Wway % [eg 18bpng eouriqWNoul] aoueleg alA waung 19b6png 1o suawisnlpy  186png uoiduosaq JaguinN unoooy
80UE[E] 0J9Z YIIM SJUN0ode aAloeU| apnjoxg [
abuey ajeq Aq |IBlaQ @ouBIqUINOUT JS)14 8a0UelEeq 019Z YUM SJUNOIDE JUlld _H_ aoueiquinous aid spnjoy| D v202-£20C :leaj |eosiq

NNYd IHNLIANIdX3 ANNd TVYHINTD

uolleonp3 Jo pieoq piojlieH MaN JO UMO|



3 -obeyd LE°1°6208 fpvieBpngmidyuen1oid:  podey WY 95:80:LL  ¥202/5e/S0 paluld

uoday jo pu3g
%igel 0S2ZY6'LSY'L$  G2TLS'6L0'LS  SLVIS'ZIv'e$S  882SL'8/v'8$ Ly 6£9'8E8S £9°/92'966'0L$  ¥6'S9S‘ELYS 69'1L0L'2bS'0LS [ejo] puely
%000 17'920'LLS 00°0$ 17'920'21$ (1+'920'21%) 00°0$ 00°0$ 00°0% 00°0% 009 - suononpa [j0JAed :pun4
%000 L7'920'21L$ 00°0% 17'920'L1$ (L¥'920'21%) 00°0% 00°0$ 00'0$ 00°0% 0006 - :oung
%000 19'9.0°21$ 00°0$ L¥'820'21% (1¥°920'21%) 00'0% 00°0% 00°0$ 00°0$ %1 INIW3HILIH 661 LOF'100°0006'009
%E959  00°005'0L$ 00'0$ 00°005'01% 00°005'6$ 00'0$ 00°000'91$ 00'000'0}+$ 00°000'9% by - Al ITLIL pund
%00c8  00°005'8% 00°0% 00'005'8% 00'00S'+$ 00'0$ 00'000'01$ 00°000'0+$ 00'0$ 0122 - uononuisuy| 40 JuawaAoidw| :oung
52/0E/9
%0008 00°000'v$ 00°0$ 00°000'v$ 00'000't$ 00'0$ 00'000'G$ 00°000'S$ 00°0% [BUBIEIY WNINJUIND Y UEd Al BL §20°000°219°0182 v
%00°00L 00°000'L$ 00'0$ 00'000'tL$ 00'0$ 00°0$ 00000l $ 00°000'}$ 00°0% G2/0E/9 SBlejES Y HEd Al BJUL S20°000°'62E'0422 by
S2/0E/9
%0628  00°00S'€$ 00'0% 00°00S'e$ 00°005$ 00°0$ 00'000'v$ 00°000'v$ 00°0$ S90|AI8S Y08 | 9 Joid ¥ Ued Al SlIL 520°000°¥2E 0182 biy
%eeee  00°000'¢$ 00°0% 00'000'2$ 00°000'v$ 00°0$ 00°000'9% 00'0% 00'000'9% $001 - :ound
%EL'ee  00°000'2$ 00°0% 00'000'2$ 00'000'tv$ 00°0$ 00°000'9$ 00'0% 00°'000'9% ¥2/0E/9 ¥ Med Al BIL #¥1°0L0°00E ¥00L Prb
%ee'ez  G5'919'e$ LO0LLS 95°82E'v$ P81 LLS S¥'861% 00'9LS'G1L$ 00°02L'2$ 00'9vL'L$ gyt - ¥ Ued || 8Bl pund
%Sy'9  00°00S$ 00°0$ 00°005$ 00'9ve'/$ 00'0% 00'9vL'L$ 00°0$ 00'9vL'L$ 0122 - uononusu| Jo Juswsaosdwy :oung
%00'00L  00°05¢$ 00°0% 00°0S¢$ 00'0$ 00°0$ 00'052$ 00'0$ 00°05¢2$ §2/0€/9 selddng-y-(| oL 520°000°L19°0128 2hy
way 9% |eg lebpng  eoueiqunou] aouejeg QLA usuny 19bpng 1o swawisnlpy  1e6png uonduosaq 18qWINN JUNoJoY
90UBeq 018Z Y}IMm SIUNOIJE BAIJ0BUI 8pN|OXT _H_
obuey ajeq Aq |leloQ souBIqUNOUT J8YI4 aoue(eq 0J9Z yim SJUNODDE Julid D |oueIqwnous aid apnjou| _H_ ¥202-€202 :1eaA jeosi4
HEQeIiS SEEEISL ¥e0g/L/s  eieq wold NNYH FHNLIANIdX3 ANN4 TvHINTD

uonesnp3 Jo pieog pJiojlieH M3aN JO UMO



EnviroMed

Mr. Jeffrey Sousa
Superintendent of Schools
530 Main Street

P.O. Box 315

New Hartford, CT 06057

Subject: Asbestos Abatement Professional Design Services
Abatement Specification, Plan(s), Probable Cost Estimates and Professional Services

Site: Ann Antolini Elementary School
Areas of Concern for Asbestos Abatement Include:
1. Main Hall Corridors in the original building
2. Girls and Boys Bathrooms at south entrance
3. Attic Stairwell

Proposal: P-24-153

Dear Mr. Sousa,

EnviroMed Services, Inc., submits this proposal to provide asbestos abatement design services for the
above referenced school facility. In accordance with state and federal regulatory requirements that
apply to school facilities, a design plan specification for asbestos abatement is required to be provided
by an accredited and state licensed asbestos project designer.

EnviroMed proposes the following scope of professional services.

SCOPE OF SERVICES

EnviroMed Services Inc., state licensed Asbestos Project Designer reviews existing inspection records
in the areas(s) of concern for asbestos containing materials scheduled for removal.

A site visit is performed to visually inspect existing conditions and delineate the specific scope of
asbestos abatement work. This includes developing the sequence of work, number and location of
containments, approximate quantities and types of asbestos containing material, specific engineering
controls and / or other specific regulatory requirements.

A probable abatement cost estimate is prepared the asbestos designer. This is typically based on
current average Asbestos Abatement Contractor rates based on time and material costs.

Asbestos Consultant costs are provided based on estimated number of days of project monitoring, air
sampling laboratory cost(s), re-occupancy clearance testing and close out reporting.

470 Murdock Avenue, Boxl_l Meriden, CT 06450, (203) 238-4846, Fax: (203) 238-4243  www.enviromedservices com. )
An Equal Opportunity Employer



The Asbestos Project Designer, on request, provides professional services including attendance at Pre-
Bid Meeting(s), Construction Phase Progress Meetings and assists the Board of Education with
contractor requests for Information related to the asbestos abatement project.

SCHEDULE

Asbestos Abatement Design Services

Areas Included for Abatement Design at the Ann Antolini Elementary School
1. Main Hallways Original Building

2. Girls and Boys Bathrooms at South Entrance

3. Attic Stairwell

Engineer/Licensed Designer $ 95/ hour (up to 40 hours)
Includes Records Review, Design Site Visit

Asbestos Abatement Specification and Plan(s)

Attendance at the initial pre-bid walk through

Mileage 2 round trips from office at federal rate (184 miles @ $0.625)

Cost § 3,915

Additional Services on Request
Asbestos Project Designer $ 95 / hour

CT DPH Application for Alternative Work Practices (AWP)
Asbestos Project Designer $ 95 / hour
State Application Fee $ 200

CT DPH School in Session Application
Asbestos Project Designer ($ 95 / hour)

Mileage
(Round Trip from Office at Federal Rate $ 0.625 / mile)

Terms

A purchase order is required to initiate with the above noted services.

Payment net 30 days

Our proposal for this project is based on our evaluation of your project requirements and EnviroMed'’s

ability to meet those requirements. EnviroMed Services Inc. welcomes the opportunity to work on this
project and future endeavors.

Respectfully Submitted,

S

p"“q—_ R

Lawrence J. Cannon, MPH, CiH, CSP, CMC, RS
President
—-":"%K/i;d;clk;.venue, Box 13, Meriden, C'T 06430, 13037 2781895, Fax (2037 258-4243 www enviromedservices com B

An Equal Opportunity Emplover



Proposal # P-24-153 is agreed and accepted an authorized representative.

BY:

PRINT NAME TITLE

SIGNATURE: DATE:

470 Murdock Avenue, Box 13, Meriden, CT 06450, (203) 238-4846, Fax: (203) 238-4243 www .enviromedservices.com
An Equal Opportunity Employer



EnviroMed

Mr. Jeffrey Sousa
Superintendent of Schools
530 Main Street

P.0O. Box 315

New Hartford, CT 06057

Subject: Asbestos Abatement Professional Design Services
Abatement Specification, Plan(s), Probable Cost Estimates and Professional Services

Site: Bakerville Consolidated School
Areas of Concern for Asbestos Abatement Include:
Hallway to new addition
Music Classroom 6
Classroom 8
Hallway from Boiler Room to K 5 Classroom
Classrooms K-4, K-5
Lower Level Equipment Room

o o~

Proposal: P-24-154

Dear Mr. Sousa,

EnviroMed Services, Inc., submits this proposal to provide asbestos abatement design services for the
above referenced school facility. In accordance with state and federal regulatory requirements that
apply to school facilities, a design plan specification for asbestos abatement is required to be provided
by an accredited and state licensed asbestos project designer.

EnviroMed proposes the following scope of professional services.

SCOPE OF SERVICES

EnviroMed Services Inc., state licensed Asbestos Project Designer reviews existing inspection records
in the areas(s) of concern for asbestos containing materials scheduled for removal.

A site visit is performed to visually inspect existing conditions and delineate the specific scope of
asbestos abatement work. This includes developing the sequence of work, number and location of
containments, approximate guantities and types of asbestos containing material, specific engineering
controls and / or other specific regulatory requirements.

A probable abatement cost estimate is prepared the asbestos designer. This is typically based on
current average Asbestos Abatement Contractor rates based on time and material costs.

470 Murdock Avenue, Box 13, Meriden, CT 06450, (203) 238-4846, Fax: (203) 238-4243 www enviromedservices com
An Equal Opportunity Employer



Asbestos Consultant costs are provided based on estimated number of days of project monitoring, air
sampling laboratory cost(s), re-occupancy clearance testing and close out reporting.

The Asbestos Project Designer, on request, provides professional services including attendance at Pre-
Bid Meeting(s), Construction Phase Progress Meetings and assists the Board of Education with
contractor requests for Information related to the asbestos abatement project.

SCHEDULE

Asbestos Abatement Design Services

Areas Included for Abatement Design at the Bakerville Consolidated School

1. Hallway to new addition

2. Music Classroom 6

3. Classroom 8

4. Hallway from Boiler Room to K 5 Classroom
5. Classrooms K-4, K-5

6. Lower Level Equipment Room

Engineer/Licensed Designer $ 95/ hour (up to 48 hours)
includes Records Review, Design Site Visit

Asbestos Abatement Specification and Plan(s)

Attendance at the initial pre-bid walk through

Mileage 2 round trips from office at federal rate (184 miles @ $0.625)

Cost $ 4,675

Additional Services on Request

Asbestos Project Designer $ 95 / hour

CT DPH Application for Alternative Work Practices (AWP)
Asbestos Project Designer $ 95 / hour

State Application Fee $ 200

CT DPH School in Session Application
Asbestos Project Designer ($ 95 / hour)

Mileage
(Round Trip from Office at Federal Rate $ 0.625 / mile)

470 Murdock Avenue. Box 13. Meriden, CT 06430, (203) 238-4846,  Fax: (203) 238-4243
An Equal Opportunity Employer

www enviromedservices.com



Terms

A purchase order is required to initiate with the above noted services.

Payment net 30 days

Our proposal for this project is based on our evaluation of your project requirements and EnviroMed’s
ability to meet those requirements. EnviroMed Services Inc. welcomes the opportunity to work on this
project and future endeavors.

Respectfully Submitted,

Lawrence J. Cannon, MPH, CIH, CSP, CMC, RS
President

Proposal # P-24-154 is agreed and accepted an authorized representative.

BY:

PRINT NAME TITLE

SIGNATURE: DATE:

470 Murdock Avenue, Box 13, Meriden, CT 06450,—- (203) 238-4846, Fax: (203) 238-4243 www.enviromedservices.com
An Equal Opportunity Employer



EnviroMed

March 15, 2024

Mr. Jeffrey Sousa
Superintendent of Schools
530 Main Street

P.O. Box 315

New Hartford, CT 06057

Subject: Asbestos Abatement Professional Design Services
Abatement Specification, Plan(s), Probable Cost Estimates and Professional Services

Site: New Hartford Elementary School
Areas of Concern for Asbestos Abatement Include:
1. Custodian Closet by classrooms 3 and 5
2. Custodian Closet by teachers lounge
3. Basement Boiler Internals

Proposal: P-24-155

Dear Mr. Sousa,

EnviroMed Services, Inc., submits this proposal to provide asbestos abatement design services for the
above referenced school facility. In accordance with state and federal regulatory requirements that
apply to school facilities, a design plan specification for asbestos abatement is required to be provided
by an accredited and state licensed asbestos project designer.

EnviroMed proposes the following scope of professional services.

SCOPE OF SERVICES

EnviroMed Services Inc., state licensed Asbestos Project Designer reviews existing inspection records
in the areas(s) of concern for asbestos containing materials scheduled for removal.

A site visit is performed to visually inspect existing conditions and delineate the specific scope of
asbestos abatement work. This includes developing the sequence of work, number and location of
containments, approximate quantities and types of asbestos containing material, specific engineering
controls and / or other specific regulatory requirements.

A probable abatement cost estimate is prepared the asbestos designer. This is typically based on
current average Asbestos Abatement Contractor rates based on time and material costs.

Asbestos Consultant costs are provided based on estimated number of days of project monitoring, air
sampling laboratory cost(s), re-occupancy clearance testing and close out reporting.

370 Murdock Avenue. Box 13, Meriden, CT 06450,  (203)238-4846,  Fax: (203) 238-4243 www enviromedservices.com
An Equal Opportunity Employer



The Asbestos Project Designer, on request, provides professional services including attendance at Pre-
Bid Meeting(s), Construction Phase Progress Meetings and assists the Board of Education with
contractor requests for Information related to the asbestos abatement project.

SCHEDULE

Asbestos Abatement Design Services

Areas Included for Abatement Design at the New Hartford Elementary School
1. Custodian Closet by Classrooms 3 and 5
2. Custodian Closet by Teachers' lounge
3. Basement Boiler Internals

Engineer/Licensed Designer $ 95/ hour (up to 40 hours)
Includes Records Review, Design Site Visit

Asbestos Abatement Specification and Plan(s)

Attendance at the initial pre-bid walk through

Mileage 2 round trips from office at federal rate (152 miles @ $0.625)
Cost §$ 3,895

Additional Services on Request

Asbestos Project Designer $ 95 / hour

CT DPH Application for Alternative Work Practices (AWP)
Asbestos Project Designer $ 95 / hour
State Application Fee $ 200

CT DPH School in Session Application
Asbestos Project Designer ($ 95 / hour)

Mileage
(Round Trip from Office at Federal Rate $ 0.625 / mile)

Terms

A purchase order is required to initiate with the above noted services.

Payment net 30 days. Our proposal for this project is based on our evaluation of your project
requirements and EnviroMed’s ability to meet those requirements. EnviroMed Services Inc.
welcomes the opportunity to work on this project and future endeavors.

Respectfully Submitted,

G S
b S 4o ailod

S il

Lawrence J. Cannon, MPH, CIH, CSP, CMC, RS
President

470 Murdock Avenue, Box 13. Meriden. CT 06450, (203) 238-4846, Fax: (203) 238-4243 www enviromedservices.com
An Equal Opportunity Employer



Proposal # P-24-155 is agreed and accepted an authorized representative.

BY:

PRINT NAME TITLE

SIGNATURE: DATE:

470 Murdock Avenue, Box 13, Meriden, CT 06450, (203) 238-4846, Fax: (203) 238-4243 www_enviromedservices.com
An Equal Opportunity Employer



P4111.3

EN
PoLicy SERVICES

A sample policy to consider.
Personnel -- Certified

Increasing Educator Diversity

The New Hartford Board of Education recognizes the importance of diversity among its
educators. It is committed to ensuring effective strategies are implemented to recruit and retain a
diverse pool of highly qualified and effective educators who reflect the demographics of our
student population and those diverse communities extending beyond our schools’ walls.

In accordance with Public Act 23-167, Section 10, the Board directs the Superintendent to
develop and submit an Increasing Educator Diversity Plan (the Plan) to the Connecticut State
Department of Education (CSDE) on or before March 15, 2024, and comply with all CSDE
procedures related to the Public Act. Upon completion of the Plan and prior to its submission, the
Board shall approve it. The day, month, and year on which the Plan receives Board approval is
required to complete the application.

The Board recognizes the complexity of sustaining the critical efforts to increase educator
diversity. To that end, the Board will work within its authority to support planning and
implementation tasks, including but not limited to planning team responsibilities, administrator
and staff training, recruitment efforts, and data collection.

The Board directs the Superintendent to draft regulations referencing resources available on
CSDE’s Talent Office Homepage.

(cf. 4111 — Recruitment and Selection)
(cf. 4111.1/4211.1 — Affirmative Action: Equal Employment Opportunity)

Legal Reference: Connecticut General Statutes
10-4a (3) Educational interests of state identified.
10-151 Employment of teachers. Notice and hearing on termination of
contract.
10-153 Discrimination on account of marital status.
10-220(a) Duties of Boards of Education. (as amended by PA 18-34)
46a-60 Discriminatory employment practices prohibited.
PA 16-41 An Act Concerning the Recommendations of the Minority
Teacher Recruitment Task Force.
PA 18-34 An Act Concerning Minority Teacher Recruitment and
Retention.
PA 19-74 An Act Concerning Minority Teacher Recruitment and
Retention.
PA 21-2 June Special Session, Sections 378 & 379.
PA 23-27 An Act Concerning Transparency in Education, Section 10

Policy adopted:
cps 1724

Sample policies are distributed for demonstration purposes only. Unless so noted, contents do not necessarily reflect official policies of the
Connecticut Association of Boards of Education. Inc.



e
%,

|
:

—

: NS R4111.3(a)
PoLicY SERVICES

A sample regulation to consider.
Personnel -- Certified

Increasing Educator Diversity

The New Hartford Board of Education recognizes the importance of diversity among its
educators. It is committed to ensuring effective strategies are implemented to recruit and retain a
diverse pool of highly qualified and effective educators who reflect the demographics of our
student population and those diverse communities extending beyond our schools’ walls.

In accordance with Public Act 23-167, Section 10, the Board directs the Superintendent to
develop and submit an Increasing Educator Diversity Plan (the Plan) to the Connecticut State
Department of Education (CSDE) on or before March 15, 2024, and comply with all CSDE
procedures related to the Public Act. Upon completion of the Plan and prior to its submission, the
Board shall approve it. The day, month, and year on which the Plan receives Board approval is
required to complete the application.

The materials provided by the CSDE will assist districts in developing comprehensive and
sustainable plans to support efforts for diversifying their educator workforce. The following
suggestions are referenced in detail in these documents and are meant to provide a broad
overview:

1. Convene a team passionate about this work, bringing diverse backgrounds and
experiences, having the credibility to lead this work, and devote the time necessary to
engage in preplanning and planning activities.

2. Utilize CSDE resources, such as EdSight, to examine your district’s data and
demographics.

Utilize the Toolkit to create an action plan.

4. Utilize the Toolkit to assist your team in creating a Shared Vision, a Theory of Action,
SMART Goals, and a Problem Statement and performing a Root Cause Analysis. These
tasks and their desirable outcomes are clearly explained and will assist your team’s plan
development.

5. Use the coaching webinars for training purposes to build your team’s capacity to lead this
work.

6. While your team's functionality is critical for sustaining your district’s efforts up to and
beyond the plan submission stage, having one person in the district responsible for
recruiting and prioritizing diversity hiring is also identified as a key to reaching your
goals.

7. In addition to approving the Plan, the Board’s support is critical in ensuring it provides
the resources necessary for the plan’s development, communicates the plan’s importance
to the community, and provides time in its meetings for updates.



R4111.3(b)

Personnel -- Certified
Increasing Educator Diversity (continued)

Through its Talent Office portal, the Connecticut State Department of Education provides
various resources designed to support districts in preparing their Increasing Educator Diversity
Plans.
Connecticut State Department of Education’s Talent Office Page:
https://portal.ct.gov/SDE/Talent_Office/Talent-Office-home-page

Materials including:

Webinars are provided to provide districts with an overview of the work required in creating
planning teams, plan development and dissemination, and training.

Creating a District Plan to Increase the Racial. Ethnic and Linguistic Diversity of Your Educator
Workforce: A Guidebook for Hiring and Selection is a comprehensive guide divided into three
parts:

1. Creating a District Plan to Increase the Racial, Ethnic and Linguistic Diversity of Your
Educator Workforce: A Guidebook for Hiring and Selection;

2. The Brookside Story: A Process Scenario designed to illustrate what district and school
leaders in a fictitious district are thinking and doing to address the goal of building a
more diverse teacher and administrator workforce;

3. Culturally Responsive Hiring Strategies Guidance Resource: A Companion to the
Culturally Responsive Hiring Self-Assessment Tool.

Creating an Action Plan and Sustaining Efforts to Increase Educator Diversity: A Toolkit for
District & School Leaders provides practical suggestions for getting started with preplanning

tasks, developing an action plan, and ongoing progress monitoring. Of great importance, this
Toolkit includes the Increasing Educator Diversity Plan Template. While not required, the
SDE materials strongly suggest using this template for plan submission.

An 80-minute training module is provided to help school leaders in hiring professionals, identify
implicit bias in the hiring and selection process, and help create a plan for recruiting and
retaining educators of color. Recent legislation passed by the General Assembly required that the
diversity training module be provided to all school district personnel responsible for hiring
teachers to examine implicit bias's pervasive role in discriminatory hiring practices and the
disproportionate distribution of teachers of color in the educator workforce.



R4111.3(c)

Personnel -- Certified
Increasing Educator Diversity (continued)
The Video Contents and Agenda include:

1. Welcome from CSDE Chief Talent Officer Dr. Shuana Tucker

2. Introduction

a. Quiz I: True or False: Myths and Misconceptions About Teacher Diversity

Core Dispositions

Equity and Systemic Racism

Why Educator Diversity Matters

o v AW

Core Tensions

a. Quiz 2: Core Tensions

7. Implicit Bias and Bias-Based Beliefs

a. Activity: Reflect on Bias-Based Beliefs

8. Responding to Microaggressions

9. CSDE Resources for Creating and Sustaining Educator Diversitv Efforts

10. Closing

You can find more information about creating a plan on the CSDE’s website, including:

e Creating a District Plan to Increase the Racial, Ethnic and Linguistic Diversity of
Your Educator Workforce: A Guidebook for Hiring and Selection

e Creating an Action Plan and Sustaining Efforts to Increase Educator Diversitv:
Toolkit for District & School Leaders

https://portal.ct.cov/SDE/Talent Office/Workforce-Diversity/Diversity-Training-Guide-for-
Hirine-Recruitine-Diverse-Educators

The CSDE requires that the district’s Increasing Educator Diversity Plan Template must use the
fillable Increasing Educator Diversity Plan Template, below, to create and submit your
increasing educator diversity plan.



R4111.3(d)

Personnel -- Certified

Increasing Educator Diversity (continued)

MPORTANT 1 Formal appoval by your booal of regional bond of ededation, of equiraisst gosening body
3 : MOTES: Iov sah0als must be obtained prior to sebmilting yow Increaring Eduoator Diverslty Flas, Be
Increasing Educator Diversity preganed 10 piovide the dug, manth dad oot thit the plon ves approved by the b or
equivalent governing body ot part of the wpload of yoms swbmistion.

1,10 the ibsense of an origingl motion of § prevtisting 00410 07 BOaY equivaieat poliey
etyressiy conferring avthority oa (he superistenduat of tquiveient sobools administator to
moko ang svcessarg Plaa revisions, the sebool boatd o equivalenl govering body vill be

Plan Template

y stpesied to formally dpprove sy aeeessirg euistons 16 N3 PLas pior 10 resubmitting the
eSt d ; tovised Plan by Mag 1, 2024
COVER PAGE 1
Disuiot:
: -
Theory of Aetion

|
M

Toam Membets:

|

Email questions about increasing educator diversity plans to:SDE.IEDPlans@ect.gov

1. To upload your increasing educator diversity plan by March 15, 2024 use the link below
to access the Increasing Educator Diversity Plan Submission
Portal:https://sdect.col.qualtrics.com/jfe/form/SV_01J4GINUJNNuuaO

2. FAQs, Plan Template, EdSight Educator Diversity Dashboard and Reports

https://portal.ct.gov/-
/media/SDE/Talent Office/IED/Increasing Educator Diversity Plan Fillable Template.xIsx

Regulation approved:
cps 1/24



i

v

"

DCATION
.lll'l‘(lf.lf.l’l
%p

P;
N
I

‘CABE
. P4118.22(a)

PoLicy SERVICES

4218.22

A sample policy to consider.

Personnel — Certified/Non-Certified

Code of Ethics

The New Hartford Board of Education expects its employees to be committed to fostering a safe,
inclusive, and supportive environment that promotes learning, growth and development.
Professional conduct is guided by principles of integrity, equity, ethical and professional
considerations, and dedication to the well-being of all students and the community we serve.
This code of ethics and professional responsibility is a guide for all public school personnel and
serves as a foundation for maintaining the highest standards of professionalism and integrity
while serving the community’s public educational interests. To that end, all Board employees are
expected to comply with the following standards:

Uphold the highest standards of integrity and honesty in all professional activities,
providing accurate and truthful information to students, colleagues, parents, and the
community.

Adhere to the Connecticut Code of Professional Responsibility for teachers and school
administrators.

Prioritize the well-being, safety and emotional health of all students while creating a
positive and inclusive learning environment, which supports the academic and personal
growth of every student.

Adbhere to all applicable laws, regulations, and school policies.

Maintain a professional relationship with all students, colleagues, parents, board of
education members, and those contracted to provide a service, and treat members of the
community with respect and dignity.

Be truthful and forthcoming with supervisors regarding any matter that may erode the
public trust and limit the ability to effectively discharge professional duties.

Safeguard the confidentiality of student and colleague information, respecting rights and
legal obligations.

Pursue your profession with a growth mindset engaging in continuous learning to
enhance practice and remain aware of and open to current theory and practice.

Make decisions based on ethical considerations, prioritizing the best interests of students
and the educational community, and seek guidance when confronted with ethical
dilemmas involving, students, colleagues, administrators, or relevant authorities.

Collaborate with colleagues and stakeholders to foster a supportive and engaging
professional community.

Fulfill professional responsibilities promptly and effectively and contribute to a positive
and professional school culture.



P4118.22(b)
4218.22

Personnel — Certified/Non-Certified

Code of Ethics (continued)

Violations of this policy may result in disciplinary action, up to and including termination of
employment.

Legal References:  Regulations of Connecticut State Agencies, §10-145d-400a Code of
Professional Responsibility for Teachers and Code of Professional
Responsibilities for School Administrators

Policy adopted:
cps 12/23

Sample policies are distributed for demonstration purposes only. Unless so noted, contents do not necessarily reflect official policies of the
Connecticut Association of Boards of Education, Inc.



P5112(a)

Suggested replacement for existing policy 5112 which has been updated.

Students

Ages of Attendance/Admissions/Placement

In accordance with Connecticut General Statute 10-186, the Board of Education shall provide
education for all persons, residing in the District, five years of age and over, who reach age five
on or before the first day of September January(effective July 1, 2024) of any school year, and
under twenty-one (age twenty-two for special education students) who is not a graduate of a high
school or vocational school, except as provided in Connecticut General Statutes 10-233¢ and 10-
233d.

Additionally, according to Connecticut General Statute 10-76d (b2), special education will be
provided for children who have attained the age of three and who have been identified as being in
need of special education, and whose educational potential will be irreparably diminished without
special education. If a special education student is being considered for an exception, the Planning
and Placement Team (PPT) will make a recommendation to the administrator in charge of special
education.

In order to determine a child’s eligibility for ELL programs, parents/guardians of all new students
enrolling for the first time and all re-enrolling students who have not previously attended a
Connecticut public school must complete a Home Language Survey (HLS) at the time of
enrollment. A student may also take a screening exam. The student must be enrolled first before
the administration of the assessment. Neither the survey nor the exam are conditions of enrollment.

Note: When a student is enrolling in a new school district or new state charter school, written
notification of such enrollment shall be provided to the previous school district or charter
school not later than two business days after the student enrolls.

Children who apply for initial admission to the District’s schools by transfer from nonpublic
schools or from schools outside the District will be placed at the grade they would have reached
elsewhere pending observation and evaluation by classroom teachers, guidance personnel, and the
school Principal. After such observations and evaluations have been completed, the Principal will
determine the final grade placement of the children.

Parents and those who have the control of children five years of age and under eighteen years of
age, are obligated by Connecticut law to require their children to attend public day school or its
equivalent in the District in which such child resides, unless such child is a high school graduate
or the parent or person having control of such child is able to show that the child is elsewhere
receiving equivalent instruction in the studies taught in the public schools. Students under age
eighteen are subject to mandatory attendance laws unless they are at least seventeen and their
parent/guardian, or other person having control of the child, consents to such child’s removal from
school. The parent or person shall exercise this option by personally appearing at the school district
office to sign a withdrawal form.




P5112(b)

Students

Ages of Attendance/Admissions/Placement (continued)

Such withdrawal form shall include an attestation from a guidance counselor, school counselor or
school administrator of the school that this District has provided the parent or person with
information on the educational opportunities options available in the school system and in the
community, and the parent or guardian that the child will be enrolled in an adult education program
upon the child’s withdrawal from school.

Enrollment

The enrollment process shall be focused on obtaining only the information deemed necessary to
establish residency and age. The District shall not request other information as a condition of
enrollment or state in its policies or on its websites or otherwise, that other information is required
to enroll children. The District shall immediately enroll a homeless child and allow such student
to attend school even if the student is unable to produce records normally required for enrollment.
Additional data collection may occur, but it must be completed in such a manner that does not
interfere with the enrollment of a child in school.

Each child entering the District schools for the first time must present a birth certificate or offer
legal evidence of birth data, as well as proof of a recent physical examination and required
immunizations. Other documents that may be accepted as proof of a child’s age include, but are
not limited to, a photocopy of a birth certificate, earlier school records, state-issued identification
document, driver’s license or passport, parent’s affidavit or unsworn statement as to a child’s age,
physician’s certificate verifying a child’s age, or immunization records.

If the parents or guardians of any children are unable to pay for such immunizations and/or
physicals, the expense of such immunizations and/or physicals shall on the recommendation of the
Board, be paid by the Town. Proof of domicile may also be requested by the Building Principal.

The parent or person having control of a child five years of age shall have the option of not sending
the child to school until the child is six years of age by December 31% of any school year. The
parent or person having control of a child six years of age shall have the option of not sending the
child to school until the child is seven years of age by December 31% of any school year.

Any child entering or returning to the District from placement in a juvenile detention school, the
Connecticut Juvenile Training School, or any other residential placement, shall have the
educational records of such child provided to the Superintendent of Schools by the Department of
Children and Families (DCF) and the Judicial Department. Such information will be shared with
the Principal of the school to which the student is assigned. The Principal can disclose them to the
staff who teach or care for the child.

The District will immediately enroll any student who transfers from Unified District No. 1 or
Unified District No 2. A student transferring from the Unified School Districts who had previously
attended school in the local District shall be enrolled in the school such student previously
attended, provided such school has the appropriate grade level for the student.



P5112(c)

Students
Ages of Attendance/Admissions/Placement (continued)

Residency

The District, when determining residency, shall not request documentation of citizenship or
immigration status of a child or the child’s parents/guardians. The Board believes such
documentation is not relevant to establishing residency.

In the establishment of residency, the Board will accept such documentation as, but not limited to,
a lease agreement, mortgage document, property tax record, rent receipt, home owners insurance,
current utility bill, current proof of government benefits, CT driver’s license, automobile
registration or insurance. An Affidavit of Residence, properly executed, shall also be acceptable.

For purposes of establishing the residency of a child of a member of the armed forces, as defined
in C.G.S. 27-103, and who is seeking enrollment in a district school, in which such child is not yet
a resident, the Board shall accept the military orders directing such member to Connecticut or any
other documents from the armed forces indicating the transfer of such member to Connecticut as
proof of residency in the District.

The above requirements are not to serve as barriers to immediate enrollment of students,
designated as homeless or foster children as required by the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA)
and the McKinney-Vento Act as amended by the ESSA. The District shall work with the local
child welfare agency, the school last attended, or other relevant agencies to obtain necessary
enrollment documentation. The District shall immediately enroll a homeless student and allow
such student to attend school even if the student is unable to produce records normally required
for enrollment.

The parent/guardian of any child who is denied admission to the District’s schools, or an
unaccompanied minor, a student eighteen years of age or older, a homeless child or youth or an
unaccompanied youth who is denied schooling on the basis of residency, or an agent or officer
charged with the enforcement of the laws concerning attendance at school may request, in writing,
a hearing by the Board of Education.

The parent or person shall exercise such option by personally appearing at the school district office
and signing an option form. The District shall provide the parent or person with information on
the educational opportunities available in the school system.

A child who has attained the age of seventeen and who has voluntarily terminated enrollment with
parental consent in the District’s schools and subsequently seeks readmission may be denied
readmission for up to ninety school days from the date of such termination unless such child seeks
readmission to the District not later than ten (10) school days after such termination in which case
the Board shall provide school accommodations to such child not later than three school days after
such child seeks readmission.



P5112(d)

Students

Ages of Attendance/Admissions/Placement

Residency (continued)

A child who has attained the age of nineteen or older may be placed in an alternative school

program or other suitable educational program if he/she cannot acquire a sufficient number of
credits for graduation by age twenty-one.

In summary:

% A parent with a child 5 and under 18 is obligated to have that child attend school.
= Unless the child graduated High School
= Unless the parent demonstrates the child is receiving equivalent
instruction elsewhere.

¢+ Students under 18 are subject to mandatory attendance laws

= Unless they are at least 17 and the parent consents to the child’s removal
from school having demonstrated the child is receiving equivalent
instruction elsewhere.

% The parent must personally appear at the school district office, and sign a withdrawal
form. (18 vear old)
--The form must include an attestation from a guidance counselor,
school counselor, or school administrator
--The attestation must indicate that the parent or student received
information regarding educational programs or options available in
the school or community.

% The parent must personally appear at the school district office, and sign a withdrawal
form. (17 year old)

--The form must include an attestation from a guidance counselor,
school counselor, or school administrator

--The attestation must indicate that the parent or student received
information regarding educational programs or options available in
the school or community.

--The parent or guardian must attest that the 17 year old withdrawing
student has enrolled in an adult education program

% The parent with a five year old has the option of not sending a child until 6.
% The parent with a six year old has the option of not sending a child until 7.

(cf. 5118.1 - Homeless Students)
(cf. 5118.3 - Children in Foster Care)
(cf. 6146 - Graduation Requirements)




Students

Ages of Attendance

Legal Reference:

Policy adopted:

P5112(e)

Connecticut General Statutes

4-176e to 4-180a Agency hearings

4-181a Contested cases. Reconsideration. Modifications.
10-15 Towns to maintain schools

10-15¢ Discrimination in public schools prohibited. School attendance by
five-year-olds

10-76a - 10-76g re special education

10-184 Duties of parents (re mandatory schooling for children ages five to
sixteen, inclusive) as amended by PA-98-243, PA 00-157, PA 09-6
(September Special Session) and PA 18-15

10-186 Duties of local and regional boards of education re school
attendance. Hearings. (as amended by P.A. 19-179)

P.A. 19-179 An Act concerning Homeless Students; Access to education
Appeals to State Board. Establishment of hearing board

10-233a - 10-233f Inclusive; re: suspend, expel, removal of pupils
10-233¢ Suspension of pupils

10-233d Expulsion of pupils

State Board of Education Regulations

10-76a-1 General definitions (c) (d) (q) (t)

P.A. 19-179 An Act Concerning Homeless Students’ Access to Education

“Guidance for Connecticut School Districts: Enrollment Process and
Practice,” State Department of Education, December 2019.

P.A. 21-86 An Act Concerning the Enrollment of Children of Members of
the Armed Forces in Public Schools and the Establishment of a Purple Star
School Program

McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act (PL 107-110 Sec. 1032) 42
U.S.C. §11431-11435, as amended by the ESSA, P.L. 114-95

Federal Register: McKinney-Vento Education for Homeless Children &
Youths Program, Vol. 81 No. 52, 3/17/2016

NEW HARTFORD PUBLIC SCHOOLS
New Hartford, Connecticut



5112
Eeenie
Form #1
NEW HARTFORD PUBLIC SCHOOLS
New Hartford, Connecticut

ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF OPTION TO EXEMPT ATTENDANCE OF
CHILD FIVE OR SIX YEARS OF AGE FROM SCHOOL

Pursuant to Section 10-184 of the Connecticut General Statutes,

I , of
Name of Parent, Guardian or Other Address

the parent, guardian or other person charged with the care of the following minor child

, of who was
Name of Child Address
born on do hereby choose not to send my child to public
Date
school during the
School Year

Furthermore, before signing this form, a representative of the

Name of District
school district met with me and provided me with information concerning the educational

opportunities and school accommodations available in the school system.

ACKNOWLEDGED BY:

Signature of Parent, Guardian or Other

Date



5112

Form #4
Form #2
NEW HARTFORD PUBLIC SCHOOLS
New Hartford, Connecticut
Request for a Waiver
To Request an Exemption to Public Act 23-208
Establishing an Age 5 Kindergarten Cutoff Date of September 1
Pursuant to Public Act 23-208 of the Connecticut General Statutes,
I ,of
Name of Parent or Guardian Address
the parent, guardian, or other person charged with the care of the following child,
, of who was born
Name of Child Address
on request that my child attend kindergarten prior to reaching five
Date of Birth

(5) years of age on September 1. [ understand that my child will be subject to an assessment
by the principal and a certified staff member, who will determine whether admitting my child

is “developmentally appropriate.”

Acknowledged by:

Signature of Parent or Guardian

Date



P5141.5(a)
Existing policy 5141.5 with newly updated modifications added.

Students
Youth Suicide Prevention and Attempts

In view of the increasing incidence of suicide and suicide attempts among young people, the New
Hartford Board of Education will take a pro active posture in the prevention of youth suicide. The
Board recognizes however, that suicide is a complex issue and that while school personnel may
recognize potentially suicidal youth, they may not make a clinical assessment of risk or provide
in-depth counseling, but must refer the youth to an appropriate place for such assessment and
counseling.

Any school employee who may have knowledge of a suicide threat or suicide attempt must report
this information to the building Principal or his/her designee who will, in turn, notify the
Superintendent, the student’s family, and appropriate resource services.

The Board of Education recognizes the need for youth suicide prevention procedures and will
establish student assistance program(s) to identify risk factors for youth suicide, procedures to
intervene with such youth, referral services and training for teachers, other school professionals and
students to provide assistance in these programs.

Risk factors for youth suicide will be based on the statewide strategic suicide prevention plan
developed by the Connecticut Suicide Advisory Board, which includes, but is not limited to youth
who are:

1. bereaved by suicide,

2. disabled or have chronic health conditions, such as mental health or substance use
disorders,

3. involved in the juvenile justice system,

4. experiencing homelessness or placed in an out-of-home setting, such as foster care, or

5. lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender or questioning.

To that end, the Board directs the Superintendent to implement an assessment recommended by the
Connecticut State Department of Education for determining suicide risk. The assessment shall be used
to determine the suicide risk of students who:

1. ‘exhibit mental health distress,
2. have been identified as at risk of suicide, or
3. are considered to be at an increased risk of suicide based on particular risk factors.

It is the policy of this Board that the New Hartford Schools:

1. Utilize a K-6 health curriculum that includes suicide prevention lessons;

2. Provide training for teachers, administrators, and ancillary personnel in

order to increase their awareness of the risk factors and behaviors that may

indicate suicidal thinking;

Identify community resources that can be of assistance;

4. Draw up intervention procedures for use in the event of a suicide or
suicide attempt; and

5. Have a post-intervention strategy in place.

(8]



P5141.5 (b)

Students

Youth Suicide Prevention and Attempts

Legal Reference: Connecticut General Statutes

10-221(e) Boards of education to prescribe rules

Policy adopted: December 18, 2007 NEW HARTFORD PUBLIC SCHOOLS
New Hartford, Connecticut



R5141.5(a)

Sample regulation to review and compare, other versions are available.
Students

Suicide Prevention/Intervention

Guidelines

All school district professionals have a responsibility to share with Principal observations of student
behavior which appear to be related to the possibility of suicide. -

The Principal, in turn, has a responsibility to follow the guidelines attached to the Board policy and
regulation on suicide. If circumstances of a particular situation indicate that actions other than those
described would serve the best interests of a given student and the school system, the Principal may
consult with the designated student school system, the Principal may consult with the designated
Student Assistance Team (SAT), Planning and Placement Team (PPT) and/or other appropriate
personnel to make such a decision and shall make appropriate documentation of the circumstances
and the resulting decision.

For the elementary schools, the term Student Assistance Teams should be replaced with Pupil
Personnel Services Designee or school nurse.

In addition, information regarding the 988 crisis line should be made widely available in schools and
district offices. Text should note to call 988 if you are in emotional distress and/or you are having
suicidal ideations. It should also include that by calling 988, you will be provided with support and
connected to resources if needed.

Special Issues in Using Procedures
1. Communication

The building Principal shall maintain communication with the Superintendent of Schools
about all suicide attempts and shall call on the Central Office for advice on how to proceed if
any situation warrants. In turn the Superintendent will keep the Board informed about suicide
related issues as appropriate. All communications must be kept confidential as appropriate.

2. Documentation

All actions taken by school personnel should be carefully documented. Such records should
express facts, observable behaviors and actions. They should be placed in the student's
supplementary file. Following an attempt or completed suicide, a daily log might be helpful.

3. Contagion

Sometimes a suicide attempt or completed suicide will trigger other suicide attempts. There
is no clear body of knowledge about how or why this occurs and what unique circumstances
cause it. The best preventive measure against the contagion effect seems to involve careful
identification and monitoring of students who may be in a risk category, efforts to reduce
glamorization of the suicide and carefully planned follow-up activities.



R5141.5(b)

Students

Suicide Prevention/Intervention

Guidelines (continued)

4.

Principal

Shall be understood to mean Principal or Principal's designee.

Anniversary Dates

The week, month or year anniversary of the death may trigger a delayed grief reaction or
suicide attempts modeled after the first. School personnel should be sensitive to this and
intensify monitoring of students at these times.

Support

While Student Assistance Team members will probably be sensitive to each other's needs for
support, it can also be helpful to have an outside professional available during and following
crisis periods to "debrief" the team and offer support to individual members as needed.
Suicide at School

Most experts agree it is better to keep students at school where adult support systems are
available than to send them home, where no adult supervisors might be available to them.

Students should only be released to their parent(s)/guardian(s) or other responsible adults
should they ask to leave school early.

Students at Risk for Suicide

1.

General Procedures During School Hours

School staff who have identified a student who exhibits the signs as noted in Appendix or who
have other reason to believe the student is at risk for suicide must immediately bring the
student's name to the attention of the Principal or his/her designee. This must be done even if
the student has confided in the staff person and asked the staff person to keep their discussion
confidential. In such cases, the staff person would explain that he/she cannot keep
confidentiality in these circumstances.

Appropriate staff member(s) gather background information prior to contacting the student
unless there appears to be imminent risk of self harm. This background check should be done
on the same day as the referral and may include:



Students

R5141.5(c)

Suicide Prevention/Intervention

Students at Risk for Suicide (continued)

A.

B.

Further discussion with the person who made the referral.

Contact with other staff members to get data on recent student performance. At the
earliest possible moment following the collection of information, contact with the
student will be made to determine the seriousness of the situation.

Critical Situation

The student has the intent to kill himself/herself, a specific plan for how he/she will
do it and immediate access to the method; in addition, he/she exhibits feelings of
loneliness, hopelessness, helplessness and the inability to tolerate any more pain.

(1)

@)

€)

A staff member will stay with the student to offer support. In addition, he/she
will explain to the student that someone will be contacting
parent(s)/guardian(s) because of deep concern. Under no circumstance is the
student to be left alone.

A staff member will notify the parent(s)/guardian(s) and request that they
come to the school immediately. The following points should be covered in
the meeting with the parent(s) /guardian(s):

(a) The seriousness of the situation.
(b) The need for immediate outside professional help.
(c) The need for continued monitoring.

(d) A request for parent(s)/guardian(s) to sign a release of information
form for communication between the school and the facility to which
the student will be taken, the student's therapist and other individuals
as appropriate.

If the parent(s)/guardian(s) cannot be contacted or if they refuse to come to
the school and the team determines that a medical emergency exists, normal
procedures will be followed for such emergencies. The Principal will explain
that the school may be required to file a medical neglect report with the
Department of Children and Families. In addition, the Principal may inform
the parent(s)/guardian(s) that the student will not be accepted back into school
until a formal mental health evaluation has taken place.

This exclusion will be done in compliance with state regulations and only if it
is deemed to be in the best interest of the student.



Students

R5141.5(d)

Suicide Prevention/Intervention

Students at Risk for Suicide (continued)

“4)

As a follow-up, a staff member will contact the family to discuss the family's
plans to provide professional help and support to the student. Permission for
communication between school and therapist will be requested. A plan of
action for in-school support of the student will be discussed at the next Student
Assistance Team meeting. The team will continue to monitor the student.

D. Potential Situation

The student has some intent to kill himself/herself and has thought about how he/she
would do it. He/she has access to the method but does not have everything in place.
Although the student may exhibit feelings of hopelessness, helplessness and
unbearable pain, he/she shows some willingness to accept help. The following action
will be taken, the order to be determined by the specific situation:

(D

@

3)

A staff member will explain to the student that parent(s)/guardian(s) will be
contacted in order to arrange for professional help and to develop an
appropriate support system. The staff member will offer to speak to those
people on the student's behalf. Under no circumstance is the student to be left
alone.

The Principal or designee will ask the student to sign an agreement not to harm
himself/herself.

Following the meeting with the student the Principal or designee will:

(a) Convene the Student Assistance Team to plan a course of action.

(b) Contact the student's parent(s)/guardian(s) to inform them of the
seriousness of the situation and to request a meeting that day.

() Obtain further information from the parent(s)/guardian(s) concerning
the student's mental health history including therapy and previous
suicidal attempts or threats. If the student is currently being seen by a
mental health professional, the Principal will ask for parental
permission to speak with that professional.

(d) Communicate the need for suicidal risk evaluation.



Students

R5141.5(e)

Suicide Prevention/Intervention

7

Students at Risk for Suicide (continued)

(4)

)

If the parent/guardian refuses to come to school, the Principal will explain that
the school may be required to file a medical neglect report with the
Department of Children and Families (DCF).

As follow up a team member will contact the family to discuss their plans to
provide professional help to the student. The team will meet to develop a plan
for in school support.

E. General Procedures After School Hours

If a staff member has become aware of a potentially suicidal student during after school hours,
he/she should consider and decide the following actions:

g 191 o=

Contact the parents(s)/guardian(s)
Contact the police.

Contact student's therapist.
Contact 24-hour crisis center.
Contact the Principal.

Students Who Have Attempted Suicide

1. In School Attempt

A.

The staff person who becomes aware of the attempt will remain with the student and
will immediately send for the nurse and Principal.

The nurse and Principal will follow school medical emergency procedures to get
immediate medical help for the student.

The parent(s)/guardian(s) will be contacted.

The Principal will refer to the Crisis Intervention Plan and Media guidelines to
determine a course of action.

2. Out of School Attempt

A.

The Staff person who receives the information concerning an attempted suicide will
immediately contact the school Principal who will verify the information and actions
taken by the parent(s)/guardian(s).



R5141.5()

Students

Suicide Prevention/Intervention

Students Who Have Attempted Suicide (continued)
B. The Principal will determine if the situation warrants informing the full faculty.
C. If the attempted suicide is causing visible distress among students, staff may be asked
to follow "Guidelines For Talking to Students About Suicide/Sudden Death." An after
school meeting may be held to identify others at risk with students and discuss

concerns.

D. The Principal in conjunction with the Student Assistance Team will develop a plan to
monitor and support high risk students.

E. A team member will be assigned to follow up and monitor the student upon his/her
return to school.

F. If appropriate, information will be shared with the Principal of the sibling's school.
Legal Reference: Connecticut General Statutes

10-221(e) Boards of education to prescribe rules.

Regulation approved:
rev 2/23

Sample policies are distributed for demonstration purposes only. Unless so noted, contents do not necessarily reflect official policies of the
Connecticut Association of Boards of Education, Inc.



Board of Education Self-Evaluation

2400

Form 1

Check the most appropriate rating box on a scale of 5-1 (5 representing the highest rating, 1 the lowest) for each
question. A “NA” rating is also provided if you are unable to rate on an item for any reason. A space for comments

is also provided on page 3.

L -

AEasifER

values and beliefs of the district and community.

1. The Board has a vision and /or mission based on core

]

]

2. The Board demonstrates a belief that high quality
instruction in every classroom is the foundation for
high achievement for all students.

O o=

U

]

3. The Board communicates clearly the goals and
expectations for the district, staff, and students with an
emphasis on high achievement for all students in the
district.

O O O

L]

Ll

4. The Board works to promote the accomplishments of
the district within the district and community at large
and elicits community discourse and support for
district goals.

5. The Board adopts policies that create a culture that
supports the vision and goals of the district and ensures
the manual is up-to-date and comprehensive.

Total Vision L

=W il e e STl

=t A e

TR O e = TR = o —— =

1

8

6. The Board conducts meetings that are efficient,
effective and focus primarily on student achievement
and other district priorities.

7. The Board sets goals related to the Board’s work and
focuses on them on an annual basis.

8. The Board adopts a fiscally responsible budget based
on the district’s priorities and regularly monitors the
fiscal health of the district.

O O Os

9. The Board conducts a comprehensive orientation
process to familiarize new Board members with their
roles on the team.

[

10. The Board conducts district business in accordance
with established ethical standards.

[

11. The Board participates in leadership development
activities on a regular basis.

oo o oo o=

OO o0 0O O

0o O oo Ogz




2400

Form 1
(continued)

Check the most appropriate rating box on a scale of 5-1 (5 representing the highest rating, Ithe lowest) for each question. A
“NA" rating is also provided if you are unable to rate an item for any reason. A space for comments is also provided on Page 3.

12. The Board members maintain confidentiality regarding | [ ] ] (] L] L] L]
sensitive communications.
13. The Board members honor Board decisions even when | [_| ] [l Ol [l ]
the vote is not unanimous.
14. The Board does not let party politics interfere with | [_] L] L] L] UJ L]
district business.
15. The Board makes decisions based on analysis of ] ] Il il ] ]
relevant research and data.
16. The Board deals with conflicts openly, honestly and | [] ] U ] ] L]
respectfully.
Total Board Ethics .
Board Superintendent Team _ S A s S 2 i A e
17. The Board works effectively with the Superintendent | [_] ] ] ] L] L]
as a collaborative leadership team to focus priorities
around high achievement for all students in the district.
18. The Board evaluates the Superintendent based on | [ ] | ] ] ] ]
progress toward attainment of predetermined goals and
the effectiveness of his/her leadership in
implementation and achievement of the district goals.
19. The Board demonstrates support and respect for the | [] L] L] ] L] []
Superintendent’s role as the chief executive officer of
the district.
20. The Board provides direction to the Superintendent as | [ ] ] L] ] L] L]
a whole, not from individual Board members.
_Total - Board Superintendent Team A AR
A'&.a‘_gg T 0 ) AT~ e ‘r‘,;_.- ioca Al e E IEBRE o= ”T '_-,_—f"_'.ﬁ,:‘:‘-':f:; '__'I""ﬁ;lf N




2400

Form 1
(continued)

Please add any additional comments here (comments will be shared with participants):

Vision:

Student Achievement:

Board Operations:

Board Ethics:

Board/Superintendent Relations:

General Comments:




Y ‘ 355 Goshen Road, P.O. Box 909 16 Trowbridge Drive
E d A d v a n c e Litchfield, CT 06759 Bethel, CT 06801
\*f Phone: 860.567.0863 Phone: 855.937.2747

Fax: 860.567.3381
Educate ¢ Collaborate « Innovate .
www.edadvance.org

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
May 2, 2024

MINUTES

On May 2, 2024, the EdAdvance Board of Directors held a meeting during which a quorum was present.
President John Kissko called the meeting to order at 5:32 PM and recorded the following members in
attendance:

1. Roll Call:

Name (District): Joseph Abdella, Region 12
Deb Bell, Region 7
Kate Conetta, Danbury
John Kissko, Torrington
Dave Schneiderbeck, Region 6
Deirdre Tindall, New Hartford

EdAdvance
Personnel: Jeffrey Kitching, Executive Director
Jonathan P. Costa, Sr., Assistant Executive Director

Tracey Lay, Chief Talent & Development Officer
Carol Montory, Board Clerk

2. Approval of April 4,2024 Minutes
Upon a motion by Kate Conetta, duly seconded by Joseph Abdella, the Board unanimously approved
the minutes of the April 4, 2024 meeting.

3. Questions and Comments from the Public: None

4. Old Business: None

5. New Business:
a) Presentation/Approval: FY 2024-2025 COLA Increase

Jeff presented the proposed agency COLA for FY 2024-2025. Based on the presented budget, a
3% COLA for eligible hourly staff and a 1-1/2% COLA for eligible salaried staff for FY 2024-
2025 was recommended to the Board.



b)

c)

d)

Upon a motion by Joseph Abdella, duly seconded by Deb Bell, the Board of Directors
unanimously approved the COLA for FY 2024-2025 as presented to the Board.

Presentation/Approval: Proposed Agency Budget for FY 2024-2025

Jeff presented EdAdvance’s proposed preliminary agency budget for FY 2024-2025. This
proposed preliminary budget projects a $275,718 deficit at the end of FY 2025. This is a planned
deficit due to our new initiatives in the School Climate and Mental Health Service program and the
College and Career Accelerator. As part of our budget process, we present new budget projections
in October after the new fiscal year starts.

Upon motion by Kate Conetta, duly seconded by Dave Schneiderbeck, the Board of Directors
unanimously approved the FY 2024-2025 budget as presented.

Presentation/Election: Slate of Officers for FY 2024-2025

Jeff presented the Slate of Officers for FY 2024-2025.
President: John Kissko

Vice President: Roxy Fainer

Secretary: Deb Bell

Treasurer: Joseph Abdella

Member at Large: Sarah Robichaud

Upon a motion by Joseph Abdella, duly seconded by Dave Schneiderbeck, the Board of Directors
approved the Slate of Officers for FY 2024-2025 as presented to the Board. The motion was
approved unanimously.

Presentation: EdAdvance Increasing Employee Diversity Plan

Jeff announced that Tracey will speak about this during her update later in the meeting and
informed them that the plan was included in this month’s packet for their review.

Approval: Personnel Report

Upon motion by Deb Bell, duly seconded by Kate Conetta, the Board of Directors unanimously
approved the Personnel Report for April 2024 as submitted.

Reports/Updates:

a)

Professional Learning — Jonathan P. Costa, Sr.
> Jonathan reported that we had 150 applicants for our four $1500 scholarships.
The northern region scholarship winners are:

e Garrett Gallo, Northwestern Regional High School, will be attending Northwestern
Connecticut Community College to study Computer Information Systems. His essay was
about his various volunteer experiences.

e Baylie Pesce, Litchfield High School, will be attending the University of South Carolina
to study Biomedical Engineering. Her essay was about her service to her local
community.




The southern region scholarship winners are:

e Nihitha Nelakudity, Pomperaug High School, Region 15, will be attending Babson
University to study Management Information Systems. Her essay was about her
experience with Teens Tutor Teens, a small, nonprofit tutoring service run by local
teenagers.

e Layne Nittolo, Henry Abbott Technical High School, will be attending AIC to study
Physical Therapy. Her essay was about experiences as a student at a technical school and
a volunteer for the American Red Cross.

» Lisa Carter, our new Assistant Executive Director, will be starting on July 1, 2024. She will be
attending our Leadership and Extended Leadership Retreat on June 18.

b) Talent and Development — Tracey Lay
> Tracey spoke about the EdAdvance Increasing Employee Diversity Plan that was included in
this month’s Board of Directors information packet. There is an agency committee that
assisted in compiling our plan. We will be holding affinity groups that are open to our
districts. This information will be embedded into our recruitment and hiring process. We have
already started this by having a bias training for our program directors and hiring staff.

¢) Executive Director’s Report — Jeffrey C. Kitching
> Jeff thanked everyone for their support for the last 8 years as this is his last Board meeting. We
will probably need a June Board meeting, but Jonathan will be leading that one. He is proud of
everything that has been accomplished and our districts will be in good hands.

7. Adjournment

Upon a motion by Joseph Abdella, duly seconded by Kate Conetta, the meeting was adjourned at 6:06
PM.

Minutes recorded by:
Carol Montory, Board Clerk Deb Bell, Secretary




WATER SYSTEM SOLUTIONS & DESIGN, INC.

740 Thomaston Road Tel: 860-274-8853
P. O. Box 180 Fax: 860-274-9648
Watertown, CT. 06795 ronwblack@msn.com
May 16,2024

Attn;  Jeff Sousa, Superintendent
From: Ron W.Black
RE: Bakerville School — Chlorination of Water Supply

Dear Jeff,

As we discussed. we have become strong advocates of getting school water supplies chlorinated. In addition, we have had
bacteria hits at Bakerville over the past 10-20 years. Because we are required to sample once every 3 months, a problem can
oceur and contaminate the drinking water without ever being detected for months. The DPH and we have become firm
supporters of chlorinating all public water supply systems in an effort to prevent bacterial and viral contamination and
illness. Public awareness to water quality and safety has grown exponentially over the past few years, and we now strongly
recommend to all of our clients that they should do everything possible to assure the public that they are providing safe and
reliable water to the best of their ability — including chlorination as a basic step.

A permanent chlorination system installed at each school will help insure safe and potable water all the time to the entire
school population. Maintaining a free chlorine residual will help keep the water safe, and will help maintain full
uninterrupted compliance with the health codes and DPH standards. We have nearly 30 other systems throughout this area
that we have chlorination in, as wells are slowly showing that bacteria comes and goes - and it is best for the consumer and
customers to proactively install a chlorine system, instead of waiting for a DPH violation, or, worse, a health risk or illness
to occur.

We do all design and submittal work required for State of CT DPH approval needed to install and maintain the system:

Full design submittal that we prepare and send to the DPH for their review and Approval to Install
Installation of the feedpump system as designed with piping, controls, safety switches and solution tank
Installation of the required automatic chlorine analyzer to sample continually and activate alarms as needed
The 24/7 chart recorder to document the levels that need to be measured daily and then reported to the DPH
e  Prepare and send the monthly treatment daily logs to DPH; sampling as required.

COST: Complete chlorine feedpump system with analyzer and chart recorder, designed/installed: $14,500

Pulstatron chemical feedpump, internal control, paced to adjust to varying well flows

Safety flow-switch and lockout controls

35-gallon chemical day tank for solution, on spill containment skid.

Piping, valves, electrical controls and safety shut-offs for system installed

Designs and Drawings, with Submittals to the State of CT for DPH review and approvals

ATI Q46 monitoring system with alarms for high and low chlorine, with appropriate shutoffs
Honeywell DR4301 - 7-day chart recorder system to log chlorine levels per DPH requirements
Piping and electrical, as needed

Labor and Warranties

Adding a chlorination system will change and increase the water testing requirements - lead and copper sampling will need
to be done every 6 months for a year. Since we currently visit the site once every 2 weeks to insure proper operations, we
would not need to increase this current frequency of site visits to oversee and operate the chlorine treatment system.

Thank you,

—

e

L

. e —— —_—
e —— o g

i

Ron W. Black
President, Chief Operator

DESIGN - BUILD - OPERATIONS - CONSULTING




WATER SYSTEM SOLUTIONS & DESIGN, INC.

740 Thomaston Road Tel: 860-274-8853
P. 0. Box 180 Fax: 860-274-9648
Watertown, CT. 06795 ronwblack@msn.com
May 16, 2024

Attn:  Jeff Sousa, Superintendent
From: Ron W. Black
RE: Antolini School — Chlorination of Water Supply

Dear Jeff,

As we discussed, we have become strong advocates of getting school water supplies chlorinated. In addition, we have had
bacteria hits at Antolini School over the past 10-20 years. Because we are required to sample once every 3 months. a
problem can occur and contaminate the drinking water without ever being detected for months. The DPH and we have
become firm supporters of chlorinating all public water supply systems in an effort to prevent bacterial and viral
contamination and illness. Public awareness to water quality and safety has grown exponentially over the past few years,
and we now strongly recommend to all of our clients that they should do everything possible to assure the public that they
are providing safe and reliable water to the best of their ability — including chlorination as a basic step.

A permanent chlorination system installed at each school will help insure safe and potable water all the time to the entire
school population. Maintaining a free chlorine residual will help keep the water safe. and will help maintain full
uninterrupted compliance with the health codes and DPH standards. We have nearly 30 other systems throughout this area
that we have chlorination in, as wells are slowly showing that bacteria comes and goes - and it is best for the consumer and
customers to proactively install a chlorine system, instead of waiting for a DPH violation, or, worse, a health risk or illness
to occur.

We do all design and submittal work required for State of CT DPH approval needed to install and maintain the system:

Full design submittal that we prepare and send to the DPH for their review and Approval to Install
Installation of the feedpump system as designed with piping, controls, safety switches and solution tank
Installation of the required automatic chlorine analyzer to sample continually and activate alarms as needed
The 24/7 chart recorder to document the levels that need to be measured daily and then reported to the DPH
e Prepare and send the monthly treatment daily logs to DPH; sampling as required.

COST: Complete chlorine feedpump system with analyzer and chart recorder, designed/installed: $14,500

Pulstatron chemical feedpump, internal control, paced to adjust to varying well flows

Safety flow-switch and lockout controls

35-gallon chemical day tank for solution, on spill containment skid.

Piping, valves, electrical controls and safety shut-offs for system installed

Designs and Drawings, with Submittals to the State of CT for DPH review and approvals

ATI Q46 monitoring system with alarms for high and low chlorine, with appropriate shutoffs
Honeywell DR4301 - 7-day chart recorder system to log chlorine levels per DPH requirements
Piping and electrical, as needed

Labor and Warranties

Adding a chlorination system will change and increase the water testing requirements - lead and copper sampling will need
to be done every 6 months for a year. Since we currently visit the site once every 2 weeks to insure proper operations, we
would not need to increase this current frequency of site visits to oversee and operate the chlorine treatment system.

Thank you,

rs

Ron W, Black
President, Chief Operator

DESIGN - BUILD - OPERATIONS - CONSULTING






